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HIGHLIGHTS
1l 2

2015/2016 2014/2015 Increase/(Decrease)
2015/20165 | 2014/20154 2,/ i)
%
Operating results (HK$’000) BEER(B%TR)
Revenue WA 227,460 214,959 12,501 5.8
Gross profit EF 138,369 122,663 15,706 12.8
Profit for the year FRER 21,215 11,051 10,164 92.0
Profitability (%) BFEN (%)
Gross profit margin EFE 60.8 57.1 3.7 6.5
Net profit margin pE 9.3 5.1 4.2 82.3
Return on equity BRI HRE 6.1 3.3 2.8 84.8
Return on total assets BEEDRX 5.7 3.1 2.6 83.9
Liquidity nEBER
Current ratio (time) ML E (15) 10.6 1.4 0.8) (7.0)
Quick ratio (time) RELLE (13) 10.1 10.7 0.6) (5.6)
Inventory turnover (days) FER®E (X&) 66.6 63.1 35 55
Trade receivables turnover (days) BHRWGIERS (R¥) 37.6 45.7 (8.1) (17.7)
Trade payables turnover (days) BHREMNFIERS (RE) 36.7 52.1 (15.4) (29.6)
Per share data SE3E
Earnings per share BREF
- Basic (HK cents) —EAR (L) 2.65 1.60 1.05 65.6
- Diluted (HK cents) —%58 (&) 2.64 1.60 1.04 65.0
Dividend per share BREE
~ Interim (HK cents) —E (L) 100 NATER NATER NATEAR
- Final (HK cents) —RE (L) 1.00 1.00 - -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2016



In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms and expressions shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Acquisition”

“Audit Committee”
“Board”
“Brand Development

and Management
Segment”

“BV|”

“Company”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

”

“Director(s)

“Fullshare Group”

the acquisition of Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical and Tai Wo Tong
Company Limited on 1 June 2015

the audit committee of the Company
the board of Directors

the business segment in which the
Group purchases primarily personal care
products from the brand proprietors and
manages and develops the brand of such
products

the British Virgin Islands

Hin Sang Group (International) Holding
Co. Ltd. FTHEEE (B ZERER A A,
an exempted company incorporated with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
28 October 2010

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules and, in the context of
the Company, means each of Mr. Pang,
Mrs. Pang and Genwealth

the director(s) of the Company

Fullshare Holdings Limited (2 5% % i%
AR A 7)), a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability
whose issued shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 607) and
its subsidiaries
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DEFINITIONS

B

“Genwealth”

“‘GMP”

“Group” or
“Hin Sang Group”

“Hin Sang Holding”

“Hin Sang Hong (HK)”

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2016

Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited ($TE S BEZERBRAAF), a
company incorporated with limited liability
on 5 October 2010 in the BVI, the issued
shares of which are owned as to 90%
by Mr. Pang and 10% by Mrs. Pang, a
controlling shareholder of the Company
under the Listing Rules

“Good Manufacturing Practice” is a
quality assurance approach used by
drug manufacturing industry worldwide
to ensure that products are consistently
produced and controlled according
to appropriate quality standards.
Hong Kong, like most other countries,
has adopted the GMP guidelines
promulgated by the World Health
Organisation (WHO)

the Company and its subsidiaries

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited ($7
A EEERBERAR), a company
incorporated with limited liability on 11
September 2006 in the BVI and directly
wholly owned by the Company

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited ( $74
17BRRAF]), a company incorporated
with limited liability on 13 June 1996 in
Hong Kong and wholly owned by Hin
Sang Holding and an indirect subsidiary
of the Company
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“Hong Kong” or “HK”

HKS"

“Listing”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Mr. Pang”

“Mrs. Pang”

upCm

“Period”

“PRC” or “China”

“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

the listing of the Shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the Macau Special Administrative Region
of the PRC

Pang Siu Hin (&4 %7), an executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

Kwan Lai Man (B =) , the spouse of
Mr. Pang, an executive Director and a
Controlling Shareholder

proprietary Chinese medicine, as defined
in the Chinese Medicine Ordinance
(Chapter 549, the Laws of Hong Kong)

the year ended 31 March 2016

the People’s Republic of China which,
for the purposes of this report, excludes
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

the Pre-IPO share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 25
September 2014
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DEFINITIONS
R

“Product Development
Segment”

“SFO”

“Shares”

“Shareholders”

“Share Option Scheme”

“Stock Exchange”

“Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical”

“Trading of Goods
Segment”

the business segment in which the Group
develops own personal care products,
health supplements and household
products sold under its own brands,
including but not limited to “Beautymate
(ZMDFK)”, “Hin Sang ($74£) 7,
“Shuang Long (%) " and “King’s
Antiseptic (GZEE) "

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of
HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the
Company

holders of the Shares

the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 25 September 2014

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited ( A1 =24 (%) A
FR/AA]), a company incorporated with
limited liability on 6 April 2009 in Hong
Kong

the business segment in which the Group
engages in trading and distributing skin
care products, personal care products
and household products purchased
from various authorised dealers and
independent traders or directly from
suppliers
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Pang Siu Hin (Chairman)
Kwan Lai Man
Dong Meixian (Appointed on 4 July 2016)

Non-executive Director

Wong Wai Ling
Yuen Chi Ping (Appointed on 4 July 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors

Lee Luk Shiu
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
Tsui Nam Hung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lee Luk Shiu (Chairman)
Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
Tsui Nam Hung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Tsui Nam Hung (Chairman)
Kwan Lai Man

Lee Luk Shiu

Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (Chairman)
Kwan Lai Man

Lee Luk Shiu

Tsui Nam Hung
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2 A ¥R

COMPANY SECRETARY
Wong Ting Dan
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Pang Siu Hin
Kwan Lai Man

LEGAL ADVISERS

Hastings & Co.
Chak & Associates

AUDITOR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
COMPANY WEBSITE
www.hinsanggroup.com
SECURITIES CODE

Equity: 6893.hk

ENQUIRES

Company:

Email: contact@hinsanggroup.com
Public Relations Consultant:

Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Email: HSH_enquiry@sprg.com.hk
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
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As at 31 March 2016 201653 A31H

VERBRAT
Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd.

PTESEERER A F
Hin Sang Group Holding Limited

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 68%

AMERLE(FE) BBHER BBREREH
BRAA ERERDLE BRAF
Tai Wo Tong Hong Kong Hong Kong
Pharmaceutical Medicine Pharmaceutical &
(Hong Kong) Manufactory Research Institute
Company Limited Holdings Co., Ltd. Co., Limted

Bl (FE) . o
HM Advertising ARAT T?T_$1TEFE’L\ G
Company Chong Sang (HK) Hin Sang Hong Beautymate
et 9 9 Company Hong Kong Limited
Limited Company Limited
Limited

PTEEIRBER
BRAT
Hin Fai

International
Holding
Company Limited

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

BBBIERRFT
= ARDAE
AMEFRDAE
Tai Wo Tong jeanolsend

o Pharmaceutical &
Company Limited -

Institute Co., Ltd.
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= Hin Sang Hong
Trading (Shenzhen)
Limited
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THE GROUP
ALH

OVERVIEW

The Group is engaged in the marketing, selling and manufacturing
of health care products primarily target at children, among which
“Hin Sang ($74) " has been a long established reputable brand.
The Group has recently established e-Commerce business to cope
with consumer’s trend to purchase through electronic platforms.
To leverage existing resources to increase profit, the Group also
represents reputable brands in skin care, personal care and slimming
product categories. Mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare as
well as diagnosis and treatment services projects are underway to
capture the fast-growing market.

Our business operations are mainly based in Hong Kong though
distributors are appointed to sell and distribute under our own brands
in PRC, Taiwan, Macau, and export markets such as Malaysia.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group has three business segments classified by their ownership
and licensing rights: (i) Product Development Segment in which
the Group develops own products sold under our own brands; (ii)
Brand Development and Management Segment in which the Group
purchases from the brand proprietors and manages and develops
the brand of such products; (i) Trading of Goods Segment in which
the Group engages in trading and distributing products purchased
from various authorised dealers and independent traders or directly
from suppliers.

Product Development Segment

We leverage on our distribution and sales experience to develop our
own health care products, personal care products and household
products. Our core brands are mainly brands owned by us in various
categories including “Hin Sang (74 ) ", “Beautymate (ZE LD
%), “Tal Wo Tong (AME)” and “Shuang Long (%) ”. We
start developing the “Hin Sang (74 ) ” brand in 2004 mainly for our
health supplements. “Beautymate (END7&) "
2009 mainly for our skin care category.

was developed in
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During the Period, we outsourced the production of all our
ownbranded products to external manufacturers in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Taiwan.

Brand Development and Management Segment

We have a proven history of managing and developing a number of
brands for our brand proprietors (who are mainly manufacturers and
brand proprietors of the products) in respect of their personal care
products mainly in the market in Hong Kong since 1999. We entered
into an exclusive distribution agreement with each of the brand
proprietors and provided them with one-stop marketing, sales and
distribution, logistic and delivery services for their branded products.
All the brand proprietors in the Brand Development and Management
Segment are Independent Third Parties.

Amongst the products managed and developed by us for the brand
proprietors, the bath and shower products under the brands of
“Acene (JBE) ", “Enear (13F) ", “Venic (FEHR) " and “Zici (%
%) " are well known to local households in Hong Kong. We have
added “Burner (&%) ", the number 1 selling slimming product in
Taiwan for 9 consecutive year, and “See Young (J%)&) ", a brand of
non-silicone shampoo & conditions product which with Korean star
“Song Hye Kyo (RZ& ) ” as celebrity to our portfolio.

Trading of Goods Segment

Since 1996, we continue to serve our trade customers with quality
products purchased sourced from authorized dealers and overseas
suppliers. This segment with low profit margin will be de-emphasized
in order to focus on product development segment which yield higher
profit margin.
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Major Events of Hin Sang Group in 2015/2016

45 2015

TTHEEERREETHEET  EitebEMEMER TitE
AEhEIME, -

Hin Sang Group actively performed its social responsibility and
was awarded "Social Caring Organization" by the Social
Enterprise Research Institute.

67 2015

UThE " AMESEE ,  AEBEGRBESERRLEBNRER
RE AR -

Hin Sang Group acquired "Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical”, laying
the foundation for the long-term development of the Group's
health care medicines and food business.

105 2015

BEMOTERE LM AFREITEITRILIGBE - BYLEER
g MR,  B-REENE T HR SR L
To celebrate the first anniversary of Hin Sang Group's Listing and
the 19th anniversary of its establishment, an annual dinner
entitled "Sailing Forward" was held, presenting an memorable
night to our guests and staff.

BERTERE "TTEEERSE S ) fREHE - H10R1FRE
FHESREE o

At the same date, the Group held the first "Hin Sang Group
Scholarship" award ceremony where a total of 10 students
attended the ceremony to receive awards.
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Major Events of Hin Sang Group in 2015/2016

15 2015

TTEEEBEREFERENMAMBRERE " LHAREE
Kig, BEREEAE—FHREMREERR -

Hin Sang Group was re-awarded the "Listed Company Award"
issued by The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysis and
Professional Commentators Limited, in recognition of the Group's
stability and operational performance during the past year.

TIETTHARAR®E "1S0 9001:2008 ; MEEIERIREDE ©

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited was certificated by the quality
management system of "ISO 9001:2008".

125 2015

PSRBT THSENY,  RITERR L GRBLRR
E—RSEAte Y - SEEFIRBEIRG - LIERE LI}
RO -

Hin Sang Group held "Work Guidance Workshop" by visiting the
local companies with the students receiving Hin Sang Group
Scholarship and their families with an aim to encouraging them to

broaden their horizon and abtain the joy of learning outside the

xﬁh, 2016

?fri"ﬁrfﬁ“ﬂﬁ;ff?ﬁ%’/\fﬁé’é?%Eéi&ﬁi@ﬂﬁ%%ﬂ%@ﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁ
HRRRIRESE > SEHRIRI(E -
Hin Sang Hong Company Limited was awarded "Caring Company"

issued by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the eighth
successive year, in recognition of its caring efforts.

AL TETIERIRR IR BIRAR) ,  TRIBIRESIRESET -
Hin Sang Group established "Hin Fai International Holding
Company Limited" to expand the cross-border e-commerce
business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
W

a

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors of Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

ANNUAL REVIEW

The Group has achieved key breakthrough from 2015 to 2016.
After successful acquisition of Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical in June
2015, the Group has laid firm foundation for long term development
of health care supplement and food business. Although the market
environment is still full of challenges, the Group has been able to
maintain sustained revenue growth. By launching high frequency
modern TV commercial advertisements on multiple TV Channels
across China our brand has started being recognized by increasing
population of parents and children, that has led to the Group’s
exceptional growth within China market. “Hin Sang ($74) ” brand
today, has extended its footprint to 19 provinces in China.

BALAR :

AABRERITEER (BB ZRER AT
EEeNERHEMNBRARMAREAEE
HZE2016F3A31HIEFEMFEERE -

FEOE

2015220165 [& 7 & B HU/5 A 52 1 50 ¢ -
E2015F6 ARKINIEE [ KMERE] - A&
EREZMERRMEBFNIREZEETE
M- BEMBRREDITMKE - SRR
BRAEE BRERZRESHS AN
AEEREREREIER BARERR/Z
FIARAARIE  SEEFEMISREMN N
BER [TT4]lmBRREERBE19EEH
SR M5 o
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ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group’s total revenue
amounted to approximately HK$227.5 million, representing an
increase of approximately 5.8% from HK$215.0 million of last year.
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded a net
profit of approximately HK$21.2 million, representing a growth of
approximately 91.0% from HK$11.1 million of last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per Share for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

PROSPECTS

Hong Kong market will maintain healthy growth and continue its
profit contribution to our business. The Group will continue our
effort on new product development, in order to enrich health care
supplements portfolio and enhance the brand concept as being
specialist in providing health care supplements. Through reasonable
change of product mix, the Group will ensure that only those
products with high sales volume potential to be retained within our
product portfolio.

The Group has recorded an encouraging revenue growth of 42.5%
from China market for the year ended 31 March 2016 and will be
continuously focus on China market’s development. The health care
supplement market for children shall be benefited by the launch
of two-child policy, with expected 5 to 8 million newborn babies in
2017. To seize such great opportunity, the Group will continue to
expand our distribution network by recruiting additional distributors
and increase publicity effort further to extend our customer base by
attracting new customers.

With the rise of online shopping, the Group has established a new
e-commerce joint venture. A sales platform focusing on the products
under “Hin Sang (#74 ) " brand was launched in May 2016, through
which customers, particularly those in China can place their orders
directly to our Group and enjoy home delivery service. We will
introduce more health supplements onto the platform to expand our
product portfolio and marketing scale.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
R W

Looking forward, the Group expects that our fundamental business
will continue to grow as result of the two-child policy. In order to
cater for the huge market of mother-infant healthcare, the Group will
establish a joint venture company with Fullshare Group to expand
the business of mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as
diagnosis and treatment services. The Group believes that the joint
venture company can leverage on the financial resources, experience
and connections of the joint venture shareholders to develop its
business in the healthcare industry which will further diversify and
broaden the scope of the healthcare business of the Group. The
Group will make relentless effort to reward the investors’ trust and
support.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Period, the Group’s revenue was approximately HK$227.5
million, representing an increase of 5.8% as compared to HK$215.0
million for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Despite that market situation continues to be difficult, a satisfactory
growth in the PRC market was recorded. “Hin Sang (#74) ” brand,
now available in 19 PRC provinces, has been receiving continuous
advertising support to effectively reach couples with children through
high frequency new TV commercials broadcasted on nationwide
networks. Effective promotion programs in Hong Kong also maximize
our brand awareness and product trials amongst target consumers,
thus contribute to a natural growth in Hong Kong market.

During the Period, the Product Development Segment was still the
largest segment which contributed approximately 81.4% of the
Group’s revenue while it accounted for 77.6% of the total revenue
for the last financial year. The revenue contribution from Brand
Development and Management Segment decreased from 15.7% for
the last financial year to 13.4% for the Period. The Trading of Goods
Segment recorded a continuous drop in revenue and its revenue
contribution to the Group dropped from approximately 6.7% for the
last financial year to approximately 5.2% for the Period.

Product Development Segment

Under Product Development Segment, the Group develops and
sells personal care products, health care products and household
products under its own brand names, mainly being “Hin Sang ($7
4 )7, “Beautymate (EHLD7) " and “Shuang Long (E8E) ”.

The revenue of this Segment increased to approximately HK$185.0
million for the Period from approximately HK$166.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2015. This Segment’s profit for the Period
was approximately HK$24.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$1.8 million or 8.0% as compared to that of the
year ended 31 March 2015. This Segment’s profit margin for the
Period was approximately 13.1%, while the profit margin for the year
ended 31 March 2015 was approximately 13.5%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GEATEE ) ¥ig

The aggregate revenue generated from the above three major
brands amounted to approximately HK$180.1 million for the Period,
representing 97.4% of this Segment’s revenue as compared to
approximately HK$164.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2015,
representing 98.6% of this Segment’s revenue.

Brand Development and Management Segment

Under the Brand Development and Management Segment, the
Group sells and distributes products with exclusive distribution
rights. The three major brands of this Segment are “Acene (RZ) ”,
“‘Sewame (F 523 ) " and “See Young CGZR) ”.

This Segment recorded revenue of approximately HK$33.8 million
and HK$30.6 million for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016,
representing a decrease of 9.5%. This Segment’s profit for the
Period was approximately HK$4.4 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$0.5 million or 12.8% as compared to that of
the year ended 31 March 2015. This Segment’s profit margin for the
Period was approximately 14.4% while the profit margin for the year
ended 31 March 2015 was approximately 11.5%.

The total revenue of these three major brands amounted to
approximately HK$16.9 million and HK$15.9 million respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, accounting for
approximately 50.0% and 52.0% of this Segment’s revenue of the
respective periods.

Trading of Goods Segment

Trading of Goods Segment distributes those products purchased
from authorised dealers, independent traders, manufacturers or
parallel importers and its contribution to total revenue and profit are
smaller when compared with another two segments.

This Segment recorded revenue of approximately HK$14.3 million
and HK$11.9 million for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016,
representing a decrease of 16.8%. This Segment’s loss for the
Period was approximately HK$496,000, representing an increase
of approximately HK$155,000 or 45.5% as compared to the loss
of approximately HK$341,000 for the year ended 31 March 2015.
This Segment’s loss margin for the Period was approximately
4.2% while the loss margin for the year ended 31 March 2015 was
approximately 2.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had a total of 157 staff as at 31 March 2016. The
employees of the Group are remunerated by way of fixed salary. The
Group has devised an assessment system for its employees and the
Group uses the assessment result for salary review and promotion
decisions. All the staff undergo a performance appraisal once a year.
The appraisal provides the Group with an opportunity to assess
each individual staff’s strengths and areas for improvement, thereby
enabling the Group to effectively train and develop each individual
staff. A Share Options Scheme was adopted in September 2014
to recognise and acknowledge those employees who have made
contribution to the Group.

PROSPECTS

The Group believes that public listing status has enhanced its profile,
while the net proceeds from the Listing can strengthen its financial
position and allow the Group to implement and execute its business
plan. To better utilize the Listing proceeds, the Group reallocated
the majority of the unutilised Listing proceeds to accommodate the
change in business focus and strategies of the Group. For details of
the reallocation, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 19 February 2016. The Group intends to implement the
following principal strategies to expand its business and create value
for the Shareholders:

(@) To further expand the sales and distribution
network for own-branded products

The Group plans to expand the distribution network for own
brands by entering into exclusive distribution agreements
with distributors in other territories, mainly the PRC and other
regions and countries including Taiwan, Macau, Singapore
and Malaysia. The Group will continue to expand its business
in the PRC market in terms of the number of distributors and
its product portfolio in order to timely respond to changes
in the preferences of the customers in the PRC. The Group
also continues to expand the distribution of its own-branded
products to other provinces in the PRC and increase the
number of sales representatives to assist in the expansion
of the sales network coverage. In light of the popularity of
e-commerce, the Group set up “Hin Fai International Holding
Company Limited” to promote e-commerce sales by selling
the Group’s products through online platforms operated by
independent third party merchants. Further details are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 20 April 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
GEV- ) &g

(b)

(c)

(d)

To continue enhancing brand recognition of own
brands through effective marketing strategy

The Group has developed “Hin Sang ($74)” brand into a
well-recognised brand in Hong Kong through an effective and
targeted advertising, marketing strategies and continuous
emphasis on product safety and quality. To further enhance the
popularity of the Group’s products in Hong Kong and brand
awareness and image in the PRC, the Group will continue its
effective and targeted marketing efforts. The Group also plans
to make use of innovative multimedia promotional channels
such as social media and mobile phone applications. In
addition, the Group intends to enhance the online shop which
will provide a convenient ordering system for its customers.

To expand the manufacturing arm of the Group
and explore opportunities in health industry

The Group plans to develop its own manufacturing arm
to enhance the effectiveness of the Group’s own branded
products because of the recent implementation of the two-
child policy in the PRC. To capture such opportunity, the
Group considers acquiring manufacturing plant and production
facilities so as to better monitor the quality of the products and
to secure a stable source of the same. In this regard, the Group
also considers acquiring industrial property to construct its own
GMP manufacturing plant to manufacture products of GMP
standard for export so to expand the overseas market of the
Group, mainly in the South East Asia region.

To expand in the mother-infant healthcare market
through joint venture with the Fullshare Group

The Group plans to corporate with the Fullshare Group
to expand the business of mother-infant Chinese medical
healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment services in
mainland China, Hong Kong, southeast Asia and Australia in
the future to capture the fast-growing market. The Group plans
to carry out a traditional Chinese physical alliance plan and will
discuss with the Fullshare Group relating to the feasibility to
establish flagship clinic to provide traditional Chinese medical
services for mother and children in Hong Kong. For details of
the co-operation with the Fullshare Group, please refer to the
Company’s announcement and circular on 27 April 2016 and 3
June 2016.

(b)

(c)

(d)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$227.5 million for the
Period as compared to HK$215.0 million for the same period in
2015, representing an increase of 5.8%. Such increase was mainly
due to the increase in revenue from Product Development Segment,
in particular “Hin Sang ($T4) " brand as a result of expansion in
China market and natural growth in Hong Kong market.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by 3.5% from approximately
HK$92.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately
HK$89.1 million for the Period. Such decrease was primarily due
to significant drop in purchase costs incurred under the Brand
Development and Management Segment and the Trading of Goods
Segment by 16.3% and 14.5% respectively as compared to that of
previous period.

In relation to sales under the Product Development Segment, cost of
sales increased slightly by 4.7% from approximately HK$55.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$57.8 million
for the Period.

The change in cost of sales for all business segments were in line
with the corresponding fluctuation in revenue for the Period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by 12.8% from approximately
HK$122.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately
HK$138.4 million for the Period. The gross profit margin for the
Period increased from 57.1% to 60.8% which was mainly due to
the increase in the proportion of revenue from Product Development
Segment which has a relatively higher margin.

Other Income

The Group’s other income increased from approximately HK$3.6
million for year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$5.8
million for the Period, which was mainly due to the increase in interest
income from bank deposits of approximately HK$2.6 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GEATEE ) ¥ig

Other Gains and Losses

Other losses increased by HK$3.5 million from loss of approximately
HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to loss of HK$3.8
million for the Period. The significant change was attributable to (i)
gain of approximately HK$3.9 million from Acquisition of Tai Wo Tong
for the Period: and (ii) exchange loss from Renminbi of approximately
HK$7.9 million incurred during the Period as compared to loss of
HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses increased by 6.0% from
approximately HK$45.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2015
to approximately HK$47.8 million for the Period. Such increase
was attributable to the increasing advertising expenses relating to
television advertisements in China.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses increased by 19.3% from approximately
HK$54.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately
HK$65.5 million for the Period which was mainly attributable to (i)
the increase of share-based payment expenses from approximately
HK$2.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately
HK$6.1 million for the Period; (i) the increase in staff costs (excluding
share-based payment expenses) from approximately HK$29.0 million
for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$33.8 million
for the Period; (i) the increase of depreciation and amortisation
expenses from approximately HK$3.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2015 to approximately HK$4.3 million relating to the
depreciation of newly acquired commercial properties (used as
office) in Beijing, Shanghai and Chonghing, the PRC; (iv) the increase
of travel and entertainment expense from approximately HK$3.4
million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$4.2
million for the Period; and (v) the increase in office expenses from
approximately HK$7.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to
approximately HK$8.5 million for the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Listing Expenses

The Group’s listing expenses decreased by 100% from
approximately HK$10.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2015
to nil for the Period. The decrease was due to the one-off expenses
relating to the professional fees and printing costs of the prospectus
of the Company in connection with the Listing.

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge increased by 31.8% from approximately
HK$4.4 million for year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately
HK$5.8 million for the Period, while the effective tax rates were
28.4% and 21.4% respectively. The increase in tax charge was in
line with the increase in profit before tax from approximately HK$15.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$27.0
million for the Period.

Profit for the Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s net profit increased by
91.0% from approximately HK$11.1 million for year ended 31 March
2015 to approximately HK$21.2 million for the Period, and net profit
margin increased from 5.1% to 9.3% for the Period.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories decreased by 30.7% from approximately
HK$18.9 million as at 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$13.1
million as at 31 March 2016, which was primarily due to the decrease
in finished products for distribution by 32.7% from approximately
HK$17.1 million as at 31 March 2015 to approximately HK$11.5
million as at 31 March 2016. Such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in inventories of health care products under the Product
Development Segment. The inventory turnover days increased from
63.1 days for the year ended 31 March 2015 to 66.6 days for the
Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables increased by 17.7% from
approximately HK$21.5 million as at 31 March 2015 to approximately
HK$25.3 million as at 31 March 2016, which was primarily
attributable to the increase in trade receivables from distributors
arising from the purchase of health care products under the Product
Development Segment. The trade receivables turnover days
decreased from 45.7 days for the year ended 31 March 2015 to 37.6
days for the Period.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents decreased by 9.3%
from approximately HK$264.4 million as at 31 March 2015 to
approximately HK$239.7 million as at 31 March 2016. As at 31
March 2016, the Group had no outstanding bank borrowings and
the amount of unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$32.0
million. The gearing ratio (total debts divided by total equity) as at
31 March 2016 was nil (31 March 2015: nil). The current ratio (total
current assets divided by total current liabilities) as at 31 March 2016
was 10.6 (31 March 2015: 11.4).

Financial Management and Policy

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. All the Group’s financing and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled. Implementation of the Group’s related
policies is made under collective but extensive considerations on
liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate risk.

The executive Directors, with the assistance of the Group’s financial
controller, are responsible for identifying, reviewing, evaluating and
analyzing the investment opportunities of the Group. The executive
Directors also regularly monitor the cash position and funding
requirement of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2016, the Directors were not aware of any significant
events that would have resulted in material contingent liabilities.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (22 £7) , aged 51, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. He is the founder of the Group
and has been the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group since 1996. He is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, formulation of the corporate policies and the day-to-
day management of the Group. Mr. Pang has about 20 years of
experience in the distribution, marketing and sale of health care
products, personal care products and household products, the
experience of which was gained from the operation of the Group.
Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce in 2005, the honourable president of The
Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Ltd (& &1t itk 5
E¥HE AR AR in 2008, the honourable chairman of the Hong
Kong Chinese Medicine Industry Association (& &+ Z ¥ i@ B R
A A)) in 2009, the vice president of HK & Kin Kit Yeung Clansmen
General Association Limited (BB N EBERBRESBRAF)in
2009 and became the executive vice president in 2013, the director
of YL Chiu Chow Clansmen’s Association Ltd. ( 7TEA & %M 7 %5
@AM AT in 2009 and became the vice president since 2011,
the life honorary chairman of Hong Kong Listed Chinese Medicine
Practitioners Association in 2010, the director of Pok Oi Hospital in
Hong Kong from 2009 to 2011 and became the vice president since
2012, the honourable president of Junior Police Call (Yuen Long
District) in 2010, the member of Yuen Long Town Area Committee
under the Home Affairs Department in 2012, a member of the
Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education under the Home
Affairs Department in 2014, the cochairman of New Territories Walk
for Millions Organizing Committee of The Community Chest of Hong
Kong (B A% ) in 2014, and the vice president of Shenzhen
Enterprise Confederation in 2015. He is also the life honorary
chairman of Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association focusing on the
development of education work in PRC since 2010. Mr. Pang Siu Hin
is the husband of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
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Ms. Kwan Lai Man (FAEES) , aged 45, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. Ms. Kwan is a founder of the Group
and has been the Managing Director of the Group since 1996. She
is responsible for supervising the Group’s business operations. She
has about 20 years of experience in the distribution, marketing and
sale of health care products, personal care products and household
products, the experience of which was gained from the operation of
the Group. She is also devoted in the development of education work
in PRC and is the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education
Fund Association since 2010. Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the wife of Mr.
Pang Siu Hin.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (¥&¥ ), aged 55, was appointed in
November 2010 as a non-executive Director. Ms. Wong has more
than 22 years of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing. She
received a bachelor degree in arts from the University of Hong Kong
in November 1983 and a diploma in Accounting and Finance from
the London School of Economics and Political Science, University
of London in the United Kingdom in July 1985. Ms. Wong was
registered as a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in June 1991 and an associate of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April 1990.
She has worked for more than seven years in major international
accounting firms and major local accounting firms before she set up
her own accounting firm, W. L. Wong & Co., in Hong Kong in 1994.
Since then, she has been practising as a Certified Public Accountant.
Ms. Wong is an executive director of Tonking New Energy Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as JC Group Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 8326). Ms. Wong is also an independent non-executive
director of four Hong Kong listed companies, namely, Yongsheng
Advanced Materials Company Limited (stock code: 3608), China
Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 527),
Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (stock code: 3366),
AVIC International Holdings Limited (formerly known as CATIC
Shenzhen Holdings Limited) (stock code: 161). Save and except for
Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as JC
Group Holdings Limited), Ms. Wong also acts as the chairperson of
the audit committee of each of these listed companies.

* For identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu ( ZEi#Jk ) , aged 58, was appointed in September
2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee has over 28
years of experience in commercial accounting and corporate finance.
Mr. Lee became a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in April 2001 and an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February 1987.
He obtained a diploma in business administration from Hong Kong
Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University)
in July 1983. He has worked in the Stock Exchange for around
15 years from 1986 to 1993 and from 1997 to 2005, his duties
included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed companies
in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and processing
new listing applications. His last position with the Stock Exchange
was an assistant vice president of the Listing Division. Mr. Lee was
also a senior consultant of an investment bank for 5 years from 2007
to 2012. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-executive director
of Huabao International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336) since 1
May 2006 and Yee Hop Holdings Limited (stock code: 1662) since
25 November 2015 the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (E88 8 ) , aged 47, was appointed in
November 2010 as an Independent Non-executive Director. Dr. Tang
has over 15 years of experience in the financial and securities sector.
He received a bachelor degree in business, major in finance from
Edith Cowan University, Australia in February 1993 and holds a PhD.
Degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in July 2007.
He became a senior associate of the Australian Institute of Banking
and Finance in December 1995. He is the executive director and
vice chairman of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (stock code
397) the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is
also the CEO and director of Jun Yang Securities Company Limited
which is the subsidiaries of Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited since
April 2015. He is also the executive director of AP Assets Limited.
He is also the chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Financial
Analysts and Professional Commentators Limited and the executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Securities Professionals
Association. He has been a part-time lecturer of the Master of Social
Science in Global Political Economy Programme of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong since September 2010.
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Mr. Tsui Nam Hung (#& @ #), aged 63, was appointed in
November 2010 as an Independent Non-executive Director. Mr. Tsui
has over 22 years of experience in finance control and business
logistics. He received a certificate in management jointly held by
the Hong Kong Management Association and The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in September 1990. He has worked for more
than 20 years in a global distributor of branded personal and family
care product from May 1987 and his last position in that company
was finance director and supply chain leader before his retirement
in May 2010. He gained his finance and business logistics related
experience through working in the global distributor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Ting Dan (E& ), aged 46, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company with effect from 1 February
2016. Ms. Wong graduated from the University of Manchester with
a Bachelor of Laws degree in 2005 and was admitted as a solicitor
of the High Court of Hong Kong in 2010. She is currently a solicitor
of Fairbairn Catley Low & Kong, Solicitors. Ms. Wong has handled
a wide range of corporate transactions, regulatory compliances and
other commercial matters.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Law Yankta (¥ B 5&), aged 53, is the general manager of the
Group. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from University of Regina
in Canada. He joined the Group in July 2015 and is responsible for
overall management of the Hong Kong operation. Mr. Law has over
22 years of experience in the fast-moving consumer goods industry.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Law held general manager positions in
Hong Kong with several multi-national companies and public listed
companies.

Mr. Cheuk Wah Kit (2 & ##) , aged 33, is the key account
manager of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005 since
graduation and is responsible for managing the daily operation of the
sales department. In particular, he was responsible for managing skin
care products, personal care products, general food products as well
as Chinese medicine products and handling daily operational matters
with chain retailers. He graduated from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in science in 2005.
Since then, he has been working at the Group’s sales department
and made valuable contribution to the Group. Mr. Cheuk is familiar
with the Group's internal operation and external sales strategies. He
has accumulated 11 years of relevant experience.

Mr. Mak Wing Keung (¥ k3 ), aged 49, is the information
technology manager of the Group. He joined the Group in May
2004 and is responsible for its network administration and provides
information technology support. He received a certificate of an
advanced diploma in computer studies and in electronic commerce
in the London International College for Further and Higher Education
in September and June 2001 respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, he has worked as a technical support supervisor providing
information technology support, network administration, hardware
and software development in a firm from 2002 to 2004 and has
worked as a supervisor supervising a team of technicians and
servicing personnel from 1993 to 2002 and has accumulated 20
years of relevant experience.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Group strive to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate sound
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability
and transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal
control system from time to time so as to ensure to meet with the
expectations of the Shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Except for the deviation from CG Code provision A.2.1, the
Company’s corporate governance practices have complied with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices. CG Code provision A.2.1
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Pang is the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.
In view that Mr. Pang is one of the co-founders of the Group and
has been operating and managing the Group since 1996, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Pang taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore the Directors consider that the deviation from
the CG Code provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such circumstance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and all Directors confirm that they have complied
with the standards required by the Model Code during the Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and in discharging
its corporate accountability, every Director is required to pursue
excellence in the interests of the Shareholders and fulfill his/
her fiduciary duties by applying the required level of skills, care
and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory
requirements.
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Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and business
directions, and monitoring internal controls and performances.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 March 2016, the Board comprises six members including
two executive Directors, one non-executive Director, and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board members were:

Name Present position

Mr. Pang Siu Hin Chairman of the Board,
chief executive officer and
executive Director
Managing Director and
executive Director
Executive Director
(appointed on 1 May 2015 and
resigned on 30 September 2015)
Non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director

Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Mr. Mok Tsan San

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung

The biographies details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

For the period between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016, the Board
at all times met the requirement of Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing specific
aspects of the Company’s affair under its defined scope of duties
and term of reference. The terms of reference of each of the Board
Committees are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. Details of difference committees are discussed
below.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group.

In view of the implementation of the HKEx consultation conclusions
on “Risk Management and Internal Control” for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee were revised and adopted by the Board on 23
March 2016.

As at 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee consisted of three
members who are the independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the Period, the Audit Committee had convened two meetings
and performed the following work:

1. to review the 2014/15 annual report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

2. to review the 2015/16 interim report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

3. to review the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements; and

4. to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are, among
other things, to review and to determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors
and senior management.
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As at 31 March 2016, the remuneration committee consisted of four
members, namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr. Tang
Sing Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung. The chairman of the
remuneration committee is Mr. Tsui Nam Hung.

During the Period, the Remuneration Committee had convened two
meetings to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. The primary function of the nomination committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or reappointment
of Directors and the management of the Board succession.

As at 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee consisted of four
members, namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu, Dr. Tang
Sing Hing, Kenny and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee had convened one
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and to nominate suitable and qualified individual for directorships.
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Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee
Meetings

During the Period, details of each Director’s attendance in the
following meetings are set out below.
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Numbers of meetings attended/entitled to attend

CHESE FRHREHZRE
Regular full Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Board Committee = Committee = Committee
Directors meetings meetings meetings meetings
EH2E EEERE FMZRe® REZRE
EX EFges ik L] L
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Pang Siu Hin EOTEE 4/4
Ms. Kwan Lai Man HEZRT 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. Mok Tsan San* REAFA 1/1
Non-executive Director FRTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERLT 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors BUKURTES
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu ks 3/4 2/2 2/2 1/1
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HE®EEL 4/4 2/2 2/2 11
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung L E 4/4 2/2 2/2 11
* Mr. Mok Tsan San was appointed on 1 May 2015 and resigned on 30 * EEE LR ER2015F5 41 HEZE RFR2015
September 2015 FOAB0H BT
BOARD MEETINGS EESEE

The Company generally convenes four regular full Board meetings
per year or more meetings when necessary. During the Period, four
regular full Board meetings were convened:

1. approved the appointment of executive Director and grant of
share option;

2. reviewed and approved the 2014/15 annual report of
the Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

3. reviewed and approved the 2015/16 interim report of
the Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

4.  reviewed the operational and financial reports of the Group;
reviewed and approved of the amended terms of reference of
the Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continuously updated with regulatory and
governance developments.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has devised a training record to assist the
Directors to record the training they have undertaken.

All the Directors have confirmed they had participated in continuous
professional developments to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills as directors during the Period.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDITING

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 to reflect a true and fair
view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial conditions and
results and cash flows during the Period.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016, the generally accepted accounting principles in Hong
Kong, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent use of
appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates. The financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016 were prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
internal control system and for reviewing its effectiveness, particularly
in respect of controls on financial, operational, compliance and
risk management, to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets.

e SRR

EEZRIIREXERE

PMAEEEHRTIERESZEME WHAR
AZBT EBEHRERLE -EEHE
EGRENERAERZEHES

ARABBEESBEXHRRE N
g UERLEHREME NG ARFE
RIS A E FRL ik H 2 B 2 55

Al e

FMIBESERABENBANSEFEFTXHE
B-UNBERYEHFEE[SESTOHME MK

akb
BE °

GESE:

EEAERAEAE2016E3A31 A LA K4E
B HHRE  NEEQAFREARRFIA
EENF BN R Z RN EEHIR SR -

HREE2016F3A31H It FEMBERE
B ERMEE—RARNGTEL &5
M mELERBASHERN YERER
BEMEFTER - A BB EM X B R
5t H E2016F3A31H It FEMIMBHRE
TR B E K ERE -

B2 BEREHRNAFR 2B LZR
B ¥R 5 -

REBEE 12

EETARARREAUMNAREE RS
Wi BB CEZERME  &E&-
EREAREENEZETH  ARERRE
BERAKEEE-

35



36

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
oe JigiE

Before listing, the Group has engaged external internal control
reviewer to conduct internal control reviews. The internal control
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance. The system aims to eliminate, or otherwise manage, risks
of failure in achieving the Company’s objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group, including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The
Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the Group
and communicates any material issues to the Board. Based on the
result of the review, the Directors considered that the Group’s internal
control system and procedures were effective and satisfactory.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

In order to protect the Group’s interests, the deed of non-competition
dated 25 September 2014 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
executed by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company.
Pursuant to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition, Mr. Pang,
Mrs. Pang and the Controlling Shareholders have jointly and
severally undertaken that they would not engage in any business or
manufacture any products which are in competition with those of
the Group. The Company’s independence non-executive Directors
review, at least on annual basis, the compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition by the Controlling Shareholders and their
respective close associates on their existing or future competing
business.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION ¥ B4 A B =

The remuneration paid or payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng #ZE201653H31H (- F E st &2 MR M 3E

Limited in respect of the audit services and non-audit services for the ~ B ZRF 2 M BB A & SHRIE BT A

year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows: RAGZMEmT :
Fee paid/
payable
g2ft,
EfER
Nature of services HK$’000
R 75 E B¥ETT
Audit services B RE 700
Non-audit services IETAZ RS
— Review services — B IR 150
Total a5t 850
COMPANY SECRETARY NERE

Under the code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company RIENTESFRISFEMEXEFR1 11§ RNARIE
engages Ms. Wong Ting Dan as its company secretary. Ms. Wong ZETFZENLZETAEAGTWE - T+ AH
is a practicing solicitor and in performing her duties as the company 22/ WtEBITEEA R AR AR EZ
secretary of the Company, she reports to the Board and maintains B & AE F & &R M EARQ FITH AR
contacts with the chief executive officer of the Company. R 4% o

Ms. Wong has confirmed that she has attended not less than 15 F X +EHREREANE 2T D5/
hours of relevant professional training during the Period. o HEEEEE -

ZE-AEER TEEE (BB EREBRAF 37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
oe JigiE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board and Board committees and the external
auditor will be present to answer Shareholders’ questions in the
annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be distributed
to all shareholders before the annual general meeting and any
extraordinary general meetings in accordance with the timeline
requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the articles of
association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed to be
approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the relevant general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any enquires.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“"EGM™)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be convened
on the requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth
(10%) of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the articles of association of the
Company or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for
shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns
together with their names and contact information to the
Board by addressing them to the head office in Hong Kong
at Flat B, 12/F, Hi-Tech Centre, 11 Wang Yip Street West,
Yuen Long, New Territories, Hong Kong by post or email to
contact@hinsanggroup.com for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Board will reply the enquiries and concerns as
soon as possible.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum
and articles of association of the Company on 25 September 2014
in substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing memorandum
and articles of association of the Company with effect from 16
October 2014. A copy of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association is also available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange website.
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The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in developing, marketing, selling
and distributing a wide variety of personal care products (mainly
consisting of bath and shower gels, shampoos and conditioners,
and skin care products), health care products (mainly consisting
of health supplements including but not limited to child specific
milk supplements, dietary supplements, appetising teas, nutritive
drinks, cough and cold remedies, herbal teas and medicated oils)
and household products (mainly consisting of laundry detergents
and antiseptic germicides) under various brands. Details of principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. There has been no significant
change in the principal business of the Group during the Period.
The segment information of the operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016 including a fair review of the business and discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and indication of
likely future developments in the Group’s business, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and “Five Year Financial Summary” sections of this Annual Report.
Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING AND
PLACING

The shares of the Company became listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 16 October 2014. The offer price was
HK$1.18 per share and 200,000,000 Shares were allotted. The net
proceeds from the Listing was approximately HK$217.3 million after
deducting underwriting fees and related expenses.
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On 19 February 2016, the Company has resolved to change the use
of proceeds, the proposed change of use of the remaining unutilised
Listing proceeds are summarized as follows:

R2016%F2 A198 » KRR A|EE R E WIS
FIHEZRE B T MASA/ ETATSRIE
g sEaB i :

Change of
Use of proceeds Net Proceeds use of
As at 19 February 2016 proceeds used Balance Proceed
FRRERE R#RE =5} FRERE
1#2016%2A 190 B8 FARA BHiE RA&ZEY
HK$ million HKS million HKS$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEAT BEAT BEAT
Exploring business collaboration SREFmEERALZ
opportunities with new brand proprietors ES (2 104.3 0.3 104.0 2.0
Expanding the sales and distribution network A 85 & K 7 #4848 54.2 12.4 418 24.1
Enhancing the marketing and promotion RAEREzTHEER
activities in the PRC 5EEY 326 326 - -
Expanding the product portfolio BAEmAS 13.1 1.3 11.8 1.3
Expanding the Manufacturing arm of BRAEENEEBR
the Group and exploring RREITES RS
opportunities in health industry - - - 415
Acquiring commercial property in REBKEEENEURE
Hong Kong to use as Group’s own Office ~ AEBBFHEER - - - 80.0
General working capital —REEES 13.1 13.1 - 8.7
217.3 59.7 157.6 157.6

To better utilize the Listing proceeds, the Company decides to
reallocate the majority of the unutilized Listing proceeds under the
Brand Management Use and the Sales and Distribution Use to
accommodate the change in business focus and strategies of the
Company. With the recent implementation of the two-child police in
the PRC, the Company considers acquiring manufacturing plant and
production facilities can better monitor the quality of the products
and secure a stable source.

In light of the recent downturn of the property market in Hong Kong,
the Company will explore the property market and capture the
opportunity to acquire commercial property to use as its own office,
in view of the Company’s long term strategy to mitigate the risk of
fluctuation in Hong Kong’s property leasing market in the future.
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The Company believe that the above change is in the best interest AR AIRA it EE&UM/\$ AIREMRER
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole and it will allow 27 BEEHZERZ - WG4 AR FE G E
the Company to deploy its financial resources more effectively. As at & E B &R - 2016538318 2
31 March 2016, the net proceeds from the Listing were utilized as BT IBF EﬁHEAL/\TﬁHL
follows:
Balance of the
Proceed as at
Use of proceeds 19 February Proceeds
As at 31 March 2016 2016 used Balance
FrERERE Frie MR ER
#20165£3A31H ®20165E2A 190 ERARERE ek
HKS$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBTT BEATL
Exploring business collaboration SREFREHEEAZ
opportunities with new brand EBEEKE
proprietors 2.0 0.1 1.9
Expanding the sales and BARHE k5 HA®%
distribution network 241 0.9 23.2
Expanding the product portfolio BAEMA 1.3 - 1.3
Expanding the manufacturing BrAKE E’J BLEXRT
arm of the Group and RRNREBITES K
exploring opportunities e
in health industry 41.5 - 41.5
Acquiring commercial property REBRERENE
in Hong Kong to use as REREE R &
Group's own Office ﬂ#%ﬁﬁ 80.0 - 80.0
General working capital —REEES 8.7 8.5 0.2
157.6 9.5 1481

As at 31 March 2016, the unused net proceeds were placed with
banks in Hong Kong as short-term deposits.

OPERATING RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 64 of this annual report. The details
of the reserves of the Group and the Company during the Period are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
67 and note 35 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

R2016F3A31H  RERA 2 FEFIEF5E
ERREBZBITERBER-

RExERHE

REEEE2016F3A3N B I FEMEES
MARFEREAB 27 e Bm R EMEEK
¥% REERKRQTRNEB 2 FEEFS

DRERBOTE 2R EBR KRS
B ISR R MIEES5 o

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2016



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01
per Share for the year ended 31 March 2016 (the “2016 Final
Dividend”) with a sum of approximately HK$10,804,680, which is
subject to Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2016 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 9 September
2016 (the “AGM”). The 2016 Final Dividend will be distributed on
or about Tuesday, 11 October 2016 to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 20
September 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 7 September 2016 to Friday, 9
September 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday,
6 September 2016.

Subject to the approval of the proposed 2016 Final Dividend from the
Shareholders at the AGM, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Thursday, 15 September 2016 to Tuesday,
20 September 2016, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be registered for ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed 2016 Final Dividend. In order to
qualify for the proposed 2016 Final Dividend, all transfer of Shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share register in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 14 September 2016.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 156 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Period are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2016 were approximately HK$237.3 million. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, subject to the provisions
of memorandum of association of the Company or the articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), the Company’s share
premium account may be applied to pay distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following the date of
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed shares of the Company during the Period.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group’s total charitable donations for the Period amounted to
approximately HK$1.6 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The followings are the percentage of purchases and sales attributable
to the major customers and suppliers of the Group for the Period:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 27.2%
— the five largest suppliers 54.8%
Sales

— the largest customer 19.2%
— the five largest customers 42.2%

Save and except for Brighten Hong Limited (#4817 BR A7),
a company owned by Mr. Pang’s brother-in-law, which was the
fifth largest customer for the year ended 31 March 2016, all the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers during the Period were
independent third parties.

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, or any of the associates or
any shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, hold over
5% of the issued share capital of the Company, had any beneficial
interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group noted
above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Period were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man
Mr. Mok Tsan San  (appointed on 1 May 2015 and resigned on

30 September 2015)

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Tsui Nam Hung

Mr. Mok Tsan San was appointed as an executive Director on 1
May 2015 and resigned on 30 September 2015 due to other new
commitments.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles of Association, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the
number required) any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election. In addition, code provision A.4.2 of the
CG Code also stipulates that each Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Ms. Wong Wai Ling and Mr. Tsui Nam Hung will be retired at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will be available for re-election
as Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be
independent.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 25 to 29 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director has
entered into a service agreement with the Company. Each service
contract is for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless and until it is terminated by the Company or the
Director giving to the other not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company under which each of them is
appointed for a period of three years. None of the Directors has or is
proposed to have any service agreement with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable by
the employer within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or which were required to be disclosed, under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@) Long position in Shares

EERFETHRAERRKRG M
FEROREEIENERRKXRE

M20165F3H31H " EERARNAEETH
AEBRARRHEMBEEE (ERRBHF R
HE R B EXVER) B - MBE IR s &
B BEACREZSFRBAEKRGIEXVIE
78D B AN E AR A M B A P RO M A oA
B (BEREEFLAERNEBIEXES
WEENERBEENERLAR)  IRE
BH S (55 35218 B8 AR BIFT
HFERMAmERS AR SRR EM R A
sk +ATE EMBITAESETESRRS
WIZEFRIETHRENERRABIT

@ RBROPHEFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
EERA =4V FriSRR IS E #BHISKRESLL
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Interest of a controlled 600,000,000 74.96%

corporation and family

interest (Note)
TZANTRE ZEHEEER R AR

(M%)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Interest of a controlled 600,000,000 74.96%

corporation and family

interest (Note)

i

(Bf&E)

Note: Genwealth is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and
10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Accordingly, Mr. Pang Siu Hin is deemed
to be interested in the 600,000,000 Shares held by Genwealth under
the SFO. Ms. Kwan Lai Man, being the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin,
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares that Mr. Pang Siu Hin is
interested in.

Tt REAE D MR RS

fia: TEARRZIITEEREERLL
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(b) Long position in the underlying shares of the (b) RAQXBHEBERGPHER
Company
Number of
Number of underlying
Name of Director Capacity options held shares
EEgR 53 PRI S A HER B E
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 14,350,000 14,350,000
ZOOTEAE EnEAA
Interest of spouse (Note) 8,750,000 8,750,000
Al B (BFisE)
23,100,000 23,100,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 8,750,000 8,750,000
BEEX L EnEAA
Interest of spouse (Note) 14,350,000 14,350,000
Ao BaEas (MsE)
23,100,000 23,100,000

Note: Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. Each of
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore deemed to be
interested in the underlying Shares held by each other.

Long position in Genwealth, an associated
corporation of the Company

Misr: ZANEERBMBELLZEMB-E
b 2T RERBBR LT IOEG
RRED SRR PG ER -

RAQXFEBEEITERNER

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
EEpgR {3 FifsiRin 8 E BHSKRESL
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 9000 90%
ZOOTEE EnEBEA
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 1000 10%
BAEERL EnfEBEA
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions therein that they shall
be deemed to have pursuant to such provisions of the SFO), or
any interests or short positions which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or any interests or short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2016, so far as it is known to the Directors, the
following persons, not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company, will have an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or, who is interested, directly or indirectly, in 10% or more

R EXFHRBEEIN MEEEHARFEE
TTHRABRA QRS EEMEREE (E&
RES LS ERDIEXVED) 2 Bty - R
e ERETHEBARER S LG ERD
EXVEBEET7 N8 BB A& N A B M B X P 2
EAgEIAE (BEREEZ KIS ED
BRGRERRRER 2 EE EJZ/AF')
kAR IR RE 75 MR R B 352fREE AR R
BT FEZERMAZ EFEEIXRE - &
ARE E AR RIS FrE . EWEITA

EFETESRHZBETAENEARR
B R BE R B R R SO R

FTERRRAEQAREEEEE
B HERO REEREPH
BRERKXR

R2016F3HA3 1B "HESMA - U TAL
(j’z%%%dzzv FTETBAE)BRA
RNAIRGD RE@ERGND R HEAEREZE SR
EIEPIEXVEL B2 M350 28 2 & X B M A R
AEENERIAR  KEEXHEEEEW
’”tﬁé%ﬂ#ﬁﬁﬁl RTEREBEMKE

of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to 2 AR A& 3% ZH{E ] 48 Bl A% A E (B
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the  10%3k A £ 2 #E 25 ¢
Group:
Long position in Shares RBRBHPHEFR
Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity Shares interest
£z 5 {3 BiHh#8E #REvasL
Genwealth Beneficial owner 600,000,000 74.96%
1= EmEAA
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Save as disclosed above, so far as it is known to the Directors, there
was no other person (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register
of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2016 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates nor was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective associates to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 25 September
2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme under the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company.

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize
the contribution of certain employees, executives or officers of
the Group made or will make to the growth of the Group and/or
the listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period from
25 September 2014 to 15 October 2014, after which no further
options will be granted. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one Share. The total number of Shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
24,640,000 Shares, representing 3.1% of total number of
Shares in issue as at 30 September 2014. The offer of a grant
of share options shall be accepted when the offer letter has
been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been
paid by the grantee.
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The exercise price per option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$0.826, being 30% discount of the offering price
per Share in the initial public offer on 16 October 2014.

During the Period, total 1,000,000 options was forfeited
and 468,000 options was exercised. Details of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 September 2014.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s

BARAMEERERETZE NS,
R E’\mﬁf‘iﬁo 826/ 7T #2014
F10A16B B R AR B E TN %
EEITE3I0% °

RZAHRRE - & 2£751,000,00017 i A% #

18 W 1 468,00017) BE AR EETT(F - &
RAFRBERNBRETEZFBER
AN E B H A2014F9A308 2 B
ERREE-

TREE ﬁ;ﬁzomﬁaﬂmamﬁ

share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme EREERAFRAEEA BIRE S
during the year ended 31 March 2016: ﬁ2$/&ﬂ\%ﬂﬂiéﬁ’\]& :
Exercise As at Forfeited Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April Grant during during  during the 31 March
participant Date of grant share Exercise period 2015  the period  the period period 2016
11104 #2015% #2016
SHREMBHENSE i A8 TR fTEs 4R1A pilak g Mg HWAfTE 3A31A
(HK$)
(B7)
Director
¥
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
o iTRAE 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
13,600,000 - - - 13,600,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
WEELT 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000
Employees
&R
Employees at aggregate 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2015 - 24/9/2024 768,000 - (300,000) (468,000) -
BE(&4) 25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2016 - 24/9/2024 768,000 - (300,000) - 468,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2017 - 24/9/2024 928,000 - (400,000) - 528,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2018 - 24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
25/9/2014 0.826  16/10/2019 - 24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
3,040,000 - (1,000,000) (468,000 1,572,000
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(2) Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may
make to the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group, and attract, retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 16 October 2014,
after which no further options will be issued. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one Share. The total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of
the Shares), unless approved by the shareholders in general
meeting (the maximum number of Shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time). No option may be granted
to any Eligible Participant which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options already granted or to be granted
to such Eligible Participant under the Share Option Scheme
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant exceeding 1% in aggregate of the Shares in issue as at
the date of such grant. The offer of a grant of share options
shall be accepted when the offer letter has been duly signed
and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been paid by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the acceptance of the offer
of share options.

2
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate™); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company beneficially owned
by any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant option, which must be a business day; (i) an
amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option; and (jii) the nominal value of the Share on
the date of grant.

During the Period, total 11,400,000 options under the Share
Option Scheme was granted, 9,000,000 options was forfeited
and no options was exercised. Details of the Share Option
Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 30 September 2014.
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 31 March 2016:

TREENREHZE2016F3A31H ILFERIE

Exercise As at Grant Forfeited As at
Category or name of price per 1 April during the during the 31 March
participant Date of grant share Exercise period 2015 period period 2016
143/ F4 #2015% #2016%
BHEIDEHERE #HAM fiEm fTiEs 4R18 bilakod pilopedl g 3A31A
(HKS)
(#B7L)
Director
EF
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 - 225,000 - 225,000
2y 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 - 225,000 - 225,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 - 300,000 - 300,000
- 750,000 - 750,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 - 225,000 - 225,000
WEELT 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 - 225,000 - 225,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 - 300,000 - 300,000
- 750,000 - 750,000
Mr. Mok Tsan San 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 - 3,000,000 (3,000,000) -
RELERAE 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 - 3,000,000 (3,000,000) -
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 - 2,000,000 (2,000,000) -
- 8,000,000 (8,000,000) -
Employees
&R
Employees at aggregate 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 - 90,000 - 90,000
EE (&%) 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 - 90,000 - 90,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 - 120,000 - 120,000
2/7/2015 1.38 2/7/2016-1/7/2025 - 375,000 (375,000) -
2/7/2015 1.38 2/7/2017-1/7/2025 - 375,000 (375,000) -
2/7/2015 1.38 2/7/2018-1/7/2025 - 250,000 (250,000) -
- 1,300,000 (1,000,000) 300,000
Consultant
[:1c]
Consultant 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 - 180,000 - 180,000
=l 28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 - 180,000 - 180,000
28/4/2015 1.46 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 - 240,000 - 240,000
- 600,000 - 600,000
“E-XREFR TEEE (EK)ZRERARE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2016, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary or
other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he
or she may incur or sustain or about the execution of their duties
in their respective offices. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of the
relevant legal actions against the Directors.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules since the date of the Listing to 31 March
2016.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Controlling Shareholders, including the company wholly owned
by each of them respectively, have confirmed to the Company of
their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided to
the Company under a deed of non-competition dated 25 September
2014. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the deed of non-competition have been complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders and duly enforced since the Listing Date
and up to the date of this annual report.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire as auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and a resolution for its re-appointment will be proposed at the said
meeting.

B Wk
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B Wk

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the details of the continuing connected
transactions of the Company as required to be reported under the
Listing Rules (including the significant related party transactions as
set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements during the

Period).

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

1.  Service Agreement with Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical*

BAEXS

AT EIIARBRE £ R BIABRBRN
BREX HNFE (BRENGEEMHRER
M7V IR E 2B SR F)

TERRFEFAERS

1. BEXFZRER R

Date of Agreement 25 September 2014 lGEA=R" 201499 H25H
Parties Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Tai Wo HESP PTEIT(EBE)RK
Tong Pharmaceutical = B 2k
Term Commenced from 16 October 2014 4 B E2014%F10H16H
until 31 March 2016 HZE2016F3H31H
Objective Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical was B AMEREZEE (B
engaged to including but not limited FEETRR)REE
to conduct product research and mif - B AEE
development, assist the Group to BLET A A B2 E/S AR
obtain relevant pCm registration B8 oK B i Rt
and approvals for the new pCm BN N e T
and conduct sample checking of RO SR 1T RO
the Group’s new pCm to ensure B UARRETES
compliance with the relevant laws FEREED KA o
and regulations in Hong Kong.
Annual cap for HK$1,500,000 H E£20164F 1,500,0007% 7T
the year ended 3H31H
31 March 2016 tFEZ
FEELER
Actual consideration : NIl B Z2016F : &
for the year ended 3H31H
31 March 2016* FFEZ
ERAKE"
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Packing Agreement with Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical*

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

B Wk

BEANZRENOLE G5

Date of Agreement

Parties

Term

Objective

Annual cap for
the year ended
31 March 2016

Actual consideration
for the year ended
31 March 2016*

25 September 2014

Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical

Commenced from 16 October 2014
until 31 March 2016

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical was
engaged to pack certain pCm of the
Group at the fees to be determined
with reference to the market price for
packing similar type of product and
of similar quantity.

HK$10,300,000

HK$788,926

On 1 June 2015, Hin Sang Group Holding Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the acquisition agreement
with Mr. Pang and Mrs. Pang for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical and the transaction
was completed on that day. With the Acquisition, Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical becomes a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and thus the transactions contemplated under the supply agreement,
the service agreement and the packing agreement between Tai
Wong Tong Pharmaceutical and Hin Sang Hong (HK) ceased to be
continuing connected transactions of the Company. For details of
the Acquisition, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 1 June 2015.

i A=R:E 201499 H25H
HEY;] PTET (BB K
Pty
F B BH2014F10A16H
FEZE201653A31H
B & KA T B BE 2 EE P
mEEUBEENT
LERKETHNER
ABAREERERT
AR B
HZE20165F 10,300,0007% 7T
3A31H
HFEEZ
FEER
HZ=20164F 788,926/ 7T
3A31H
HFEEZ
ERAE

M2015F6 418 - ARal2EHE A A
PTHEEEERARAREZAERY
ARG A FIERIZE > 2 5B 81T
RAFT LW MZRXHERER
TR AR EE  AMERER A
ARRz2EWNBRAR At KF=E
BBBLTELT (BB 2HEHS IR
BHEREERBZETRETZIRS
THARNRARFEBRERS BHKE
FIHZFE  B2HAAR AR A2015
FeA1AZRE-
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R ER

Sale of products under the Group brands to Brighten Hong

3. [HFEETERE AL EREE mEE

Limited Jo7z,
Date of Agreement 25 September 2014 W& B H 2014 9H25H
Parties Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Brighten HESY;] PTHEIT (BB ki
Hong Limited IBITER AR
Term Commenced from 16 October 2014 F Hf H2014F10H16H
until 31 March 2017 HE2017F3A31H
Objective Brighten Hong Limited sources B # HIBITHR A AR
the Group products for sales and BASEERUR
distribution to anywhere in the tREH (BRES -
world save for Hong Kong, Macau, RFPT FB2RPE R - 3T
Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan iRk &E) HeE &
Annual cap for HK$18,000,000 B E2016F 18,000,000/% 7T
the year ended 3H31H
31 March 2016 FFEZ
FELER
Actual consideration HK$7,683,994 HE20164F 7,683,994/ 7T
for the year ended 3H31H
31 March 2016 WFEEZ
ERRE

BHEBERSZFHE B2HARTHHA
2014F9A30R Z 1Bk EFR ©

For details of the connected transactions, please refer to the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 September 2014.

All the above continuing connected transactions did not exceed FiA LiliFERERXZF U ABBHABFEE
the relevant annual cap amounts. The Directors, including the RS 3E -EF(BEBYIFATEE)D
independent non-executive Directors, have reviewed the continuing EBEAQAGIZHEBELFIHER B
connected transactions of the Company and confirmed that they 574 :

were:

entered into on normal commercial terms;

R—RNMEEEFHBIEPFZILH A
SEMEBATAE: &

i in the ordinary and usual course of business and are fair and i
reasonable to the Group; and
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ii.  the terms of the agreements are no less favourable to the
Group than terms offered by Independent Third Parties,
and therefore are in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has
appointed the auditor of the Company to carry out certain
procedures on the above continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions.

By order of the Board
Pang Siu Hin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2016

B Wk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
J08 S A% W e o

Bl Hf &6 F 3 6 A R4

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
64 to 155, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

31/F, Gloucester Tower BB

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street SZ4TH115%
Central B ES

Hong Kong ERITITKRE3E

BOTESRE (HR)ZRBRAF
HHRE
(RASFHESEMEK L BERLA])

TIZEEN (A TR [E5F])) EBE&E#IIR
FOL4BEEFIbENTAEEE (R IERE
RAR([ERAR]) REWBAR (Sl [&
S8 2EREAMBHREX EFRBIER2016
FIABAMNGZEMBMRAKX BEZA L
FENSABREREMEZERER FREE
HBBRRGAEERER URFESES
BURBEE R E R E L -

%%ﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ié
T

BERAERAAERBEELESHMAEMN
2 EZBUHRELERNRBERRRDZ
BREREREAEN D FOERAMERE
LREBEESRARUEEMBHREMALBE
R ERE S SAEAR A M RER N FERR
MEFE SRR M G Bz AR RBM

BB EE

EENETARBEESNEREZERE
MHEHRRERBR LERNERERRS
BRIt 2 SRR EREEMBEN - EE TS5
ABENABTRERMEMALTE Eeli&E
FAEE - EECREFESAMAGHEM
ZERENERETEZ - RFEUNERE
FETBERAE WHBILWMITER UE
BHREEFAVBREEE MEEFNEXR
B8 R BRAL ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Ching Pang
Practising Certificate Number: PO5746

Hong Kong, 28 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aoy B Ak B Uil 2 i M i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 & £201643431H i F/E

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 BETRT BT T
Revenue WA 5 227,460 214,959
Cost of sales 55 R AR (89,091) (92,296)
Gross profit E A 138,369 122,663
Other income H KA 6 5,750 3,571
Other gains and losses Hibliz=s R EE 7 (3,842) (311)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAEZ (47,823) (45,129)
Administrative expenses THHAX (65,472) (54,939)
Listing expenses Estiil 5 - (10,405)
Profit before tax B 5t B A 26,982 15,450
Income tax expense I8 8 (5,767) (4,399)
Profit for the year FERRT 9 21,215 11,051
Other comprehensive expense Htt2EAX
Item that may be reclassified HEApEE# 72
subsequently to profit or loss: Bam 2 HE -
Exchange differences on translating BmEINRERE 2
foreign operations PE =58 (3,123) (799)
Total comprehensive income FREZEKAEHE
for the year 18,092 10,252
Profit for the year attributable to: BDT&AEE
FERRF :
— Owners of the Company —ARBHEEA 21,214 11,051
— Non-controlling interests — IR R 1 -
21,215 11,051
Total comprehensive income for UT&FEEER
the year attributable to: 2EKAEE:
— Owners of the Company —ARAEHEA 18,091 10,252
- Non-controlling interests —SEIERR I 1 -
18,092 10,252
Earnings per share SERT 12
— Basic (HK cents) —HAR (B 2.65 1.60
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 OBI) 2.64 1.60
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
w37 BN DL

At 31 March 2016 R20164#3/31H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5 BETRT SR T T
Non-current assets FEREIEE
Property, plant and equipment S E RN 14 40,749 16,831
Prepaid lease payments FERRERE 15 27,393 18,891
Investment property "B 16 6,289 6,555
Intangible assets | EE 17 3,480 -
Deposit and prepayments for life ASRE &S RTEN
insurance policies FRIE 18 4,795 -
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEMZE - = K&t
plant and equipment ZIEE 387 6,333
83,093 48,610
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 19 13,081 18,890
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H At FE B IR 20 38,119 26,894
Tax refundable ARER N - 3,327
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR S 21 239,742 264,393
290,942 313,504
Total assets BEH&E 374,035 362,114
Current liabilities mEARE
Trade and other payables 5 REMERKIA 22 26,467 27,432
Current tax liabilities BNERRIE & & 1,070 -
27,537 27,432
Net current assets BN ERE 263,405 286,072
Total assets less current liabilities BWEMERTDH&E 346,498 334,682

NEFHR TEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
#3 o W B5R DL AR

At 31 March 2016 R20164#3/31H

2016 2015
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T BT BT T
Capital and reserves BX R iE

Share capital fi% 7K 24 80,047 80,000
Reserves i 263,250 254,682

Equity attributable to owners of RATHB AEEER
the Company 343,297 334,682
Non-controlling interests IR = 3,201 -
Total equity HaEn 346,498 334,682

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 155 were SF64EZEF 1558 E v GEMEREERN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 201646 A28 A & & £ & #t & & % - I F

June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: UTREEZE:
Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
BOU FESR
Director Director
0 =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o B 2t 58 W) %

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOARHHARS
Foreign
currency Share Non-
Share Share Merger  translation options Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
e
12 3 RiABE BHHEEIE ERMEE MBRERE RERT #i  FREHES #i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Note 24) (Note)
(BisE24) (IizE)
At 1 April 2014 201454718 30,000 41,618 (71,463) (588) - 94,728 94,295 - 94,295
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 11,051 11,051 - 11,051
Other comprehensive expense ~ FEEM 2 AR X
for the year
Exchange differences on BENEEB
translating foreign operations ERZR - - - (799) - - (799) - (799)
Total comprehensive FEREHA/ (AX)
income/(expense) for the year B - - - (799) - 11,061 10,252 - 10,252
Capitalisation issue BARLET 30,000 (30,000) - - - - - - -
Issue of new shares ETH RN 20,000 216,000 - - - - 236,000 - 236,000
Expense incurred in comnection  RETHRNELZFRX
with issue of new shares - (8,267) - - - - (8,267) - (8,267)
Recognition of equity-settled BREZEENRNDA
share-based payments ERMR - - - - 2,402 - 2,402 - 2,402
At 31 March 2015 201583 A31H 80,000 219,351 (71,463) (1,387) 2,402 105,779 334,682 - 334,682
, oz
Profit for the year ER T B ~ B - B 21914 21214 . 21215
Other comprehensive expense ~ FEEM2EMAY
for the year
Exchange differences on BENEEK
tranglating foreign operations EXEE - - - (8,123 - - (3,123 - (8,123
Total comprehensive FEREHA/ (FX)
income/(expense) for the year oE - = - (8,123 - 21,214 18,091 1 18,092
Dividends recognised BREIRORE
as distribution - - - - - (16,005) (16,005) - (16,005)
Capital contribution from FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 3,200 3,200
Issue of shares on exercise AT ERER R ITRN
of share options 47 598 - - (258) - 387 - 387
Recognition of equity-settled RE=EEURNA
share-based payments ER O - - - - 6,142 = 6,142 = 6,142
At 31 March 2016 2016437318 80,047 219,949 (71,463) (4,510) 8,286 110,988 343,297 3,201 346,498
Note: The merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital  [fzr: A GFEBHIEA D TH A & 7N &£ H 5 B jE

of the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital of other
companies now comprising the Group, after elimination of intra-group

investments.

TEMAARMEANBSE (KEEEAR

AR ER) 2 HMEHE-

TEEE (BB ZERERQE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B Bl AR R

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities EEZHREBHARE
Profit before tax B 58 A& A 26,982 15,450
Adjustments for: =R ZIE=SEE
Interest income FLEMWA (4,907) (2,171)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEKR
plant and equipment Bz W (210) (25)
Bargain purchase gain on WHEMTB A RIEAZ
acquisition of subsidiaries = BUE K A (3,869) -
(Reversal of write-down)/Write-down & (#Ugi#E =),/
of inventories O, (399) 749
Share-based payment AR 0 B ETE R
expenses ENER 6,142 2,402
Amortisation of prepaid lease FEMEEREY
payments 5 775 665
Amortisation of intangible assets | EE 7B E 1,610 -
Amortisation of premium and ASRBZRER
charges on life insurance gung: & 180 -
Depreciation of property, WE BEMEEZ
plant and equipment e 3,481 2,674
Operating cash flows before movements % 38 & 78 & &) Aif 2
in working capital KERERE 29,785 19,744
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERL, (&) 8,518 (6,663)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and g 5 R H AW RIR
other receivables (3 hn) (10,360) 10,756
Decrease in trade and Z 5 R EAFER A
other payables oA (1,327) (20)
Cash generated from operations KEXBEHRS 26,616 23,817
Income taxes refunded R FT1FH 74 -
Income taxes paid =ENPEIEET (1,366) (14,233)
Net cash generated from KEEEMBHES
operating activities FHE 25,324 9,584
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EEBARER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BETT BT T
Cash flows from investing activities X EFEIFMFHERE
Interest received 2 1A 8 4,741 2,171
Increase in short-term deposits with [REERE @ = & A /Y
original maturity over three months R ERIRI TR ARG N (13,857) (9,647)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BEX
plant and equipment BRBFTIS IR 321 25
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE HEX
equipment B (21,759) (2,972)
Deposit for acquisition of property, plant ¥ % - BE &
and equipment R Ee (387) (6,348)
Purchases of leasehold land HEHEELH (10,802) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries UG BE B /B A &) 28 (9,185) -
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFARSFRE (50,928) (16,771)
Cash flows from financing activities FIEEHRFRERE
Dividends paid B A (16,005) (30,000)
Capital contribution from IR R HE
non-controlling interests 3,200 -
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PT1SERIE 387 236,000
Share issue costs Hﬁ D EEITAA - (8,267)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEESME,
financing activities (FMA)R&F5E (12,418) 197,733
Net (decrease)/increase in cashand &R R &S EY
cash equivalents (i) 1BinPEH (38,022) 190,546
Cash and cash equivalents at FPHRER
the beginning of year ReEEY 254,746 65,059
Effect of foreign exchange ExgHrE
rates changes 471 (859)
Cash and cash equivalents FRASR
at the end of year ReEEY 217,195 254,746
Representing: (A E
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 239,742 264,393
Short-term deposits with maturity over  =1# A A 2| 1A
three months RERITER (22,547) (9,647)
217,195 254,746
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fs o T A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Island and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
and ultimate parent is Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in developing, marketing, selling
and distributing of personal care products, health care products
and household products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™)

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 JA 5 e W

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

FERFia] R &R1E 5] & BB %
HFERA (BB BREE
All) &)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs™) (Continued)

NS 1 R IR AT E A AT B R A 1E
REBZ T RBIERT B BT B RS

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

AR :
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BEMBREED SRMIA?
Eo%
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® ERMBREEN RERERA®
F14%
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with ERRBRELERN BPAHMA
Customers? E15%%
HKFRS 16 Leases* BEMBREER HE
F16%
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of ERMBREER WESEXBHEGE:
Interests in Joint Operations' FNHRZEITER  F
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’ BECENS1R HHEAE
ZIEFIAR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable BB EA BBAEMTEREE
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and E16% R AB b
Amortisation' SR E385
ZIBEAR
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants' B ES B EEMEY
and HKAS 41 F165 R AR
SRR 415
ZIERIAR
Amendments to HKAS 27  Equity Method in Separate BRE R BURBRERP 2 ERE
Financial Statements’ FATR BRI A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERRBRERER BREEHREBEREEA
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its F10RREE AlZENEELER
Associate or Joint Venture® ERR I E -
ZIERIAR
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the ERMBRERED RABR: ERGAAR
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception’ E105 BB B flIME R
BB RS LR
F12RRAB
5T ERIE285:
ZIERIAR
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to BRRBRERED BREMBREEN2012
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle' EHES FERN4FEBE
EGEER

SE-REFR HiE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

s Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or

after 1 January 2016

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee
is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also
classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The directors of the Company are assessing the impact of
the application of HKFRS 16. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of the application of
HKFRS 16 until the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”).

The provisions of the new CO (Cap. 622) regarding preparation
of accounts and directors’ reports and audit became effective
for the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2016
have been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2015 are presented or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements based on the new requirements.
Information previously required to be disclosed under the
predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not under the new CO or
amended Listing Rules are not disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

2.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has the power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Company ceases to
control the subsidiary.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of the other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations (Continueq)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquire are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk B T 05 e W i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H i F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fs o T A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESEE #)
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued) HE (&)

Leasehold land and building HELMEET

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Foreign currencies SN
In preparing the financial statements of each individual group REHEZENERERBNMBRE
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional B A EEY j]% BB B

currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated

(INEVEIT 2R G HERZHBEZE
FAIE R o FARA HARS A5 SR B - BASD
BAEMNEEIEERNZENERE

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at EREHRE - UINBFHEZR A TFE
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are RMIFEEREERETATEERRN
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates ERAEERSIINE - IRBEKARLAIN

prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation or a partial disposal of interest in a joint arrangement
or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity
instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Share-based payment arrangements (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in subsidiary, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investment are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continueqd)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

s 3 Y 0 A B i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fa o W A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEFBE (#)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 Y 0 A 0 B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continueq)
Equity instruments (Continued)

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no
longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 J S e M

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on
a product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory
items. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.

Estimated impairment of trade and other
receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

Fair value of investment property

Investment property is stated at fair value determined by
independent professional valuers based on direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the property interest in its
existing state and making references to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant markets. In relying on
the valuation report of the independent professional valuers, the
management has exercised its judgment and is satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the market conditions
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Any changes in
the market conditions will affect the fair value of the investment
property of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk B T 0 e W i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable for the

sales of goods.

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under “HKFRS 8 Operating Segments” are as follows:

1. Product Development Segment — sales of products

developed by the Group under own brands

2. Brand Development and Management Segment — sales
and distribution of products with exclusive distribution

rights

3. Trading of Goods Segment — sales and distribution of
products purchased from authorised dealers, independent

traders, manufacturers or parallel importers

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment.

WA K7 EBE#
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BEADEER L EDBERIRNE
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AIESREE D] AEENA RS
K&y T -

1. EnRZENH-HEAKER%

ZEBRREESR

2. miEFEREESB-HELSD
HIE R 5 R E m
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TN RIRAIRE MK E D EBEI 2 R
SEBAREEN DT

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B E20165F3A31ALLEE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods
Segment Segment Segment Total
RREARR
ERFRAB FEAB RaHEEID 8t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BETT AT ERTT
Revenue KA
External sales HINEE 185,032 30,540 11,888 227,460
Segment profit/(loss) PEEFH,/ (FB) 24,292 4,421 (496) 28,217
Interest income FIBIA 4,907
Unallocated expenses FOERX (6,142)
Profit before tax BR B A& Al 26,982
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 J S e M

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

WARDEHER (&)

DEBMARRE (#)

HZE2015F3A31HIEFE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods
Segment Segment Segment Total
mERER
ERREHH EENE EBEmBEENH a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Revenue KA
External sales HOMHE 166,803 33,823 14,333 214,959
Segment profit/(loss) AEEFH/ (FB) 22,500 3,927 (341) 26,086
Interest income FISWA 2,171
Unallocated expenses FOERX (12,807)
Profit before tax BB ATA 15,450

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of corporate expenses and
interest income. This is the measure reported to the board
of directors for the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk B T 0 e W i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

WARDEHER (&)

THMEERAE

IO RRAIHRE KL 2D a8 2 HA

by reportable and operating segment. SEMEERBEND T
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Segment assets DEHEE
Product Development Segment EmAEDH 119,779 81,908
Brand Development and Management & i 5 %% I & 32 9 56
Segment 7,601 9,460
Trading of Goods Segment EmBEEDE 2,118 3,026
Total segment assets DEBEERE 129,498 94,394
Unallocated Ao BC 244,537 267,720
Consolidated assets HREEE 374,035 362,114
Segment liabilities AR
Product Development Segment EmAED 22,943 23,063
Brand Development and Management & & 5 3% & & 32 5 56
Segment 2,959 3,438
Trading of Goods Segment EmEEDE 565 931
Total segment liabilities DEBERE 26,467 27,432
Unallocated FOE 1,070 -
Consolidated liabilities ReEAaE 27,537 27,432

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
bank balances and cash, deposit and prepayments for life
insurance policies and tax refundable.

U all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

current tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B34 JA S e M

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEBER (&)

(Continued)
Other segment information Hitt 5 ZBE R
For the year ended 31 March 2016 B E20165F3A31HLLFEE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods
Segment Segment Segment Total
EGRFE GSMARR REEH
b EESE a8 8t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTT 2R Rt BETT
Amounts included in the measure STESHEFRER
of segment profit or loss or DHEERTAN L
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets ERBEERE 43,820 427 166 44,413
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEEBE 1,610 - - 1,610
Amortisation of prepaid BREENE &
lease payments 775 - - 775
Depreciation of property, NE BEREEINE
plant and equipment 3,145 242 94 3,481
Gain on disposal of property, TENE BER
plant and equipment B 17 28 11 210
Reversal of write-down of FERAER
inventories 399 - - 399
E-REFR TEEE (BEBR)ERERQF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o T A Y i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZEBER (#)

(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) Hinn HER (£)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 B E20153A31HILFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management of Goods
Segment Segment Segment Total
EnAE  @ERER EmEE
pansi EENH i a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Amounts included in the measure STESHEFRERS
of segment profit or loss or DHEERTIAN 2
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets FRPEERE 8,950 249 106 9,305
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments & & ZA v 8 665 - - 665
Depreciation of property, nE BERSBINE
plant and equipment 2,385 203 86 2,674
Gain on disposal of property, HENE FER
plant and equipment BLlie 19 4 2 25
Write-down of inventories HFEHA 749 - - 749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 J S e M

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEFR (#)

(Continued)
Geographical information b 35, &
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s REBRERE PEARKENME([H
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Taiwan. Bl ) R BB R
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers ERAASEERBINGEFPHKRAELR
is presented based on location of the operations. Information BREEBNUEE D ZEY] - BEK
about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding deposit and EEFERHEE (TRIEASREZ
prepayments for life insurance policies) is presented based on Ze RBNRIE) HERHZEENIE
the geographical location of the assets. NESHZT-
Revenue from external customers XK E I EEF B A
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BT T
Hong Kong BE 191,783 183,905
PRC & 31,485 22,102
Taiwan =N 4,192 8,952
227,460 214,959
Non-current assets FREEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Hong Kong BE 30,014 5,287
PRC H 48,163 43,136
Taiwan =D 121 187
78,298 48,610
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fa o W A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARZHEBER (&)

(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) IR E R ()
Information about major customers EHFEEFHEN
Revenues from customers for the corresponding years RAEBEFEEAEERKAEIRBI0%
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as BEFRWALT
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Customer A’ BPEA 43,681 42,132
Customer B EFB 24,053 25,809
! Revenue from Product Development, and Brand Development and ! REEMBAEARBEREREED
Management Segments. EBHIUIA o
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HflgA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BT T
Interest income on bank deposits RITF RH B A 4,741 2,171
Interest income on deposit and AEREZESRBNFTEZ
prepayments for life MEBEMA
insurance policies 166 -
Rental income HE WA 309 299
Forfeiture of customers’ deposits BB PR 129 101
Compensation from a brand proprietor — % ShEEHEA AHE X E
for breach of contract 302 215
Others B 103 785
5,750 3,571
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B34 JA S e M

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

7. HtWsERER

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEKR
plant and equipment BL e 210 25
Bargain purchase gain arising on WHEHBAREE L
acquisition of subsidiaries EEWE NS 3,869 -
Net foreign exchange loss HNEEF B 1R (7,921) (336)
(3,842) (311)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. A%
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Current tax: BVERR IS -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEN 5,914 4,776
Over provision in prior year: BEFEBERE:
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBRER (147) (377)
Total income tax recognised RE=ER TG EBE
in profit or loss 5,767 4,399

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong

Kong for both years.

No provision for taxation has been provided for companies in
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands as they are
not subject to any tax during the current and prior years.

RzMmEFERBEELSIREER
B R SR Bt A1) 1216.5% 7% R 5T 1

BEMNEHEME -

HRAEENBEFERSESE MR
B Rz BB QR B AN EMR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fa o W A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq) 8. FiIs®mM% #
BB A R R E £20169F3 A
318 1L F I E AT JERBIUA R B
£2015F3A31H IEF [ 7 fE R B
AB#EE 2 HIEEE2 K B
BATIRPBECEFRGREE-

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided
for the PRC subsidiary as there was no taxable income for
year ended 31 March 2016 and the taxable income for the
year ended 31 March 2015 was wholly offset by the tax losses
brought forward.

No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been KA M B A B 5% 8 F E I &
provided for the Taiwan subsidiary as there was no assessable F 1] JE SR A 7F'J WA AR B & b
profits for both years. KAETEE-

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FEBBEXHIEGEBREREME

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

a8 2 B BR AR AT /ﬁﬁﬂfIEEﬁHT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BT T
Profit before tax B A5 Al 26,982 15,450
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REBNEHHE16.5%
of 16.5% AAEHHIA 4,452 2,549
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A F1 5 5 2 9 B 765 52 25
for tax purpose 2,036 2,736
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax H 78 =% 7 W A KO R 75 52 22
purpose (1,649) (347)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERIH B EIENHIETE 1,752 82
Utilisation of tax losses not previously — Eh KT8 L HER
recognised THIEEE - (267)
Effect of different tax rates of EHMBEERZER
subsidiaries operating in other P A RHR AR R E A 8
jurisdictions wE (348) 33
Over provision in prior year BAFEBERE (147) (377)
Others HA (329) (10)
Tax charge for the year FEBIBEZL 5,767 4,399
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B34 JA S e M

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

9. FR#zA

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FREMNEMER,(FEA) THRIA:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BT T
Staff costs, including directors’ BIKRAN (BEESHE)
emoluments 39,717 31,417
Amortisation of intangible assets BB E 2 HH
(included in cost of sales) (BT ASHERA) 1,610 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8 18 & 3 18 ~ # §4 775 665
Depreciation of property, Y- -BEMEEITE
plant and equipment 3,481 2,674
Cost of inventories recognised BRAEAIMFEKAR
as an expense 83,645 89,927
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN N & 700 650
(Reversal of write-down)/Write-down of 2% (U B [E) /#iUR
inventories (included in cost of sales)  (ET AS§ERK ) (399) 749
Gross rental income from KEME 2 BHESIWA
investment property (309) (299)
Less: direct operating expenses B EBEEERY 54 55
Net rental income from KEYEZ FHSKA
investment property (255) (244)

—E-XNFER

PTAEEE (ER) ZRERDH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fs o T A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. ESERIETHAEME

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief ENSENRRRIEEREZITEHA
executive of the Company were as follows: BmMemT:
For the year ended 31 March 2016 # F2016F3A31HILLEE
Other emoluments
Hftil &
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
FeR HikiRE BHETHE
ne HftiEF ERBAR #® &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT YT BETT
Executive directors niTEs
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note () g 00rn i (FF) - 2,009 3,387 25 5,421
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZUL - 1,589 2,106 18 3,713
Mr. Mok Tsan San (Note (i) REASA (M) - 414 - 7 421
Non-executive director FUTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERUT 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTEER
M. Lee Luk Shiu (Note i) Fik e (M) 240 - - - 240
Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny He®EET 180 - - - 180
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung GREELE 180 - - - 180
780 4,012 5,493 50 10,335
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# o W5 A ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

10 EERTFETHAEMHE

(#&)

HZE2015FE3A31A ILFE

Other emoluments
HitEe
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other  Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
ek MRG A RAEHEE
e Hinfdl  ERONH it it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BB BB BETT
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note () g1 (FEE) - 1,891 1,289 24 3,204
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZELt - 1,469 758 18 2,245
Non-executive director ERITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERTT 83 - - - 83
Independent non-executive directors HIFHITES
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Note (i) FRK A (B 10 - - - 110
Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny HEREL 83 - - - 83
Mr. Tsui Nam Hung GEELE 83 - - - 83
359 3,360 2,047 42 5,808
Notes: B &E -

(i) Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the chief executive officer of the Company.

(i Appointed on 1 May 2015 and resigned on 30 September 2015.

(i) Appointed on 25 September 2014.

() BIUTERERARBMITHRAE -

iy  P20155E5 91 BEEERKN20159F9A
308 BifEe

(i)  M2014F9H25HEEE -

ZE-REFER

TSR (HER) ZRERLDH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok B T 0 e Y i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERIETHAEME

EMOLUMENTS (continueq)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive director’s
emoluments and the independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

None of the Company’s directors waived any emoluments
during the year (2015: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Company’s directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2015:
Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 43 Y 0 0 B i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two (2015: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 10 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2015: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

. EREEFMES

FRN AEENIERSTHEER
FEM G (20155 M%) EF - H 5
HIFHRN EXHE10- FRAEBR =R
(20165 =R FEERARAEE
TRABM &S FHEENFTMES
E IO

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$ 000

BETT BT T

Salaries and other benefits e EMEF 1,783 1,551

Share-based payments AR 0 A ETE & 53R 161 272
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREFIFT S 3K

schemes 49 48

Total emoluments B & 42 %8 1,993 1,871

Note: The emoluments of each of the above non-director, highest paid
individuals were below HK$1,000,000.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals of the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil).

M LR IFEERRHMATNHE
575 %1,000,0007C A T ©

FR - AEEVERTANAERRA
EEFMALTZIAE  UERED
ANA SR N A AR 55 [ 14 H £ [ ok Bk Bk 4
8 (20155 1 48)

B-AEEH TEEE (BB ERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fs o T A R B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. 8REF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RAARIHEANBLEREARESR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the MTERTINEEAERE

following data:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Earnings a¥
Earnings for the purpose of basic and 3 AT & & I H A N #5E
diluted earnings per share (Profit for ARz BF (KAF
the year attributable to owners of the B A JEME & REF)
Company) 21,214 11,051
2016 2015
’000 ‘000
T F A&
Number of shares B fn & B
Weighted average number of RATTESRERERT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T B AR N 81
basic earnings per share 800,134 691,507
Effect of dilutive potential TERETHETE
ordinary shares:
— Share options — I 3,473 -
Weighted average number of RATESREERT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T AR N Y 81
diluted earnings per share 803,607 691,507
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12.

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 43 Y 0 0 B i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2015 has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect
300,000,000 shares issued upon capitalisation on 16 October
2014,

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2015 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s options because the exercise price of those options
was higher than the average market price for shares for the
year.

12.

BRERN &)

HZE201543A31H L FE A UTE
BREABF 2 EBRMETHED
VEB T EE LA R 72014510 16 H
HE1TE A M 847 2 300,000,0008% A%

%o

o

ATEH E2015F3A31HILEFEZE
Be 8 B R B I B R AR AN A B 2 BB AR
BETE RERZSEREZITE
EBERRAFERND 2 FHHE-

DIVIDENDS 13. BE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BETRT BT
Dividends recognised as distribution RFRNERIED KBRS
during the year
- 2015 Final - HK$0.01 —2015F REIRR &
(2014: Nil) per share —&Z/%0.018 7T
(20144F : f%) 8,000 -
- 2016 Interim — HK$0.01 —20165F H HIfR &
(2015: Nil) per share —&/%0.015 7T
(2015%F : #%) 8,005 -
16,005 -

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 of HK$0.01
(2015: HK$0.01) per ordinary share has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming general meeting.

RmEBHRE EFEEBRNEBZE
2016F3H31HIEFEZRBEREE
B% & @ [%0.01%8 7T (20154 : 0.01/8
7T)  MEZRERRR AR EERR RS Lt
S °

PTAEEE (FER) ZRERLDH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok B T 0 e Y i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y5k -BERRE

Leasehold Building Leasehold
land held held for ~ Furniture and Motor  improvements
for own own use equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
REaRm HEaR HEME
HELH o B BB R RE RERKE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BB BETT BT BETT BB
Cost BE
At 1 April 2014 201454718 3,021 8,838 7,195 5,762 6,338 31,154
Additions HNE - - 1,429 608 935 2,972
Disposals HE - - - (283) - (283)
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 8 (12 1 6) 9
At 31 March 2015 2015634318 3,021 8,846 8,612 6,088 7,267 33,834
Additions RE 15,582 8,907 423 1,995 1,185 28,092
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wik B AR - - 42 - - 42
Disposals HE - - - (1,169) - (1,169)
Exchange adjustments L - (476) (138) (40) (154) (808)
At 31 March 2016 2016434318 18,603 17,277 8,939 6,874 8,298 59,991
Accumulated depreciation RitinE
At 1 April 2014 H2014%4A18 895 1,004 4,937 4,234 3,563 14,633
Provided for the year FERE 61 329 996 530 758 2,674
Eliminated on disposals R &R - - - (283) - (283)
Exchange adjustments EHAR - (1) (15) - ) 21)
At 31 March 2015 20154378310 956 1,332 5918 4,481 4,316 17,003
Provided for the year FERE 144 394 881 1,085 977 3,481
Eliminated on disposals RIL &R - - - (1,058) - (1,058)
Exchange adjustments L - (20) (86) (24) (54) (184)
At 31 March 2016 R201643A318 1,100 1,706 6,713 4,484 5,239 19,242
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 March 2016 #201653A31R 17,503 15,571 2,226 2,390 3,059 40,749
At 31 March 2015 2015438318 2,065 7,514 2,694 1,607 2,951 16,831
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Bk 43 Y 0 A B i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Leasehold land held for
own use

Building held for own use 3%
Furniture and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Leasehold improvements
and fixtures

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Over the lease term

25% or over the lease term
whichever is the shorter

14. ME -BERRE &)

LamE BEREREEE LERZX
BN ERFE:

RBIEE R/ ZHEEH
HELTH

BIEERANEFT 3%

TINSE 25%

"E 25%

MEMERER  25%HIZHEH
£EE (B EBE)

15. A{SHEEFE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
At the beginning of year REH] 19,554 20,194
Addition NE 10,802 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B8 & 7k 18 7 £ §4 (775) (665)
Exchange adjustments ME 3, B (1,212) 25
At the end of year RER 28,369 19,554
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TEAFmE 20
Current asset (included in trade and NHEE (EBELEES R
other receivables) H b pEGRIE ) 976 663
Non-current asset JEMEE E 27,393 18,891
28,369 19,554

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land

located in the PRC.

-z

A

AEENENEERABRELR SR
MAEE -

TSR (HER) ZRERLDH
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fa o W A A B i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H i F/E

16. REWHE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETRT BT T

At the beginning of year R F ) 6,555 6,548
Change in fair value recognised in REEERZAFEESH

profit or loss - -

Exchange adjustments bE X S E (266) 7

At the end of year RER 6,289 6,555

The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose is measured
using the fair value model and is classified and accounted for as
investment property.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at 31
March 2016 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Asset Appraisal Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at 31
March 2015 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Shing Yin Appraisal Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk 3 YU 0 A 0 B i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/Z

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment property as at
31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 was determined
based on direct comparison method assuming sale of the
property interest in its existing state and making references
to comparable market observable transactions of similar
properties in the same locations and conditions as available
in the relevant market. There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best
use of the property is its current use.

Details of the Group’s investment property and information
about the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Fair value at 31 March

16. REWE (&)

REBKREMER2016F3A31H &
2015F3A31H Z AFEZAEZ LR
EEE  BRYEERRERIEE -
WELXERB@ETSEEEE AR
B REENREYERNA A LR
BUBRXG - HERFRE—FE
FTRAEHEES-

REFMENRTER MERS
RERAGSERKERE-

AEBRENMENFERENLTE
= @AERHT

Valuation technique(s) and

R3AMBZLAEE _ ) :
Investment property Fair value hierarchy key input(s)
RAME 2016 2015  OFEER HEFERIEBANE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BETT
Commercial property unit 6,289 6,555  Level 2 Direct comparison method based on
located in the PRC E_H market observable transactions

fr Bl R M R AL

of similar properties and adjust to
reflect the conditions and locations
of the subject property
ERFAENEZTHAIBER5KE
BUBEHE U REARMEMN
MENRERLE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o W 5 A Wik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BILEE
Licenses
[ 4:
HK$’000
BT T
Cost BE
At 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 FA20144F4 818 &201543 8318 -
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries A NEPNGILSE-PN 5,090
At 31 March 2016 ®¥20165E3HA31H 5,090
Accumulated amortisation RS
At 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 201444 818 2015438318 -
Charge for the year FERX 1,610
At 31 March 2016 ®¥20165E3A31H 1,610
Carrying values IRE(E
At 31 March 2016 7#20165E3A31H 3,480
At 31 March 2015 M2015%3A31H -
The licenses have finite useful lives and are amortised on a ZERREAERTAAFH WKE
straight-line basis over 2.5 years. REAER2 5F NS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

18. DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS FOR LIFE

INSURANCE POLICIES

As referred to in note 28, on 1 June 2015, the Group acquired
the entire interest in Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong)
Company Limited (“Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical”). In 2013, Tai
Wo Tong Pharmaceutical entered into life insurance policies
with an insurance company to insure Mr. Pang Siu Hin and
Ms. Kwan Lai Man, the directors of the Company. Under the
policies, Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical is the beneficiary and
policy holder and the total insured sum is US$2,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,600,000). Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical is required to pay upfront deposits of
US$671,383 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,237,000)
including premium charges at inception of the policies
amounting to US$40,283 (equivalent to approximately
HK$314,000). Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical can terminate
the policies at any time and receive cash back based on the
cash value of the policies at the date of withdrawal, which
is determined by the upfront payments of US$671,383 plus
accumulated interest earned and minus the accumulated
insurance charge and policy expense charge (‘Cash Valug”). In
addition, if withdrawal is made, there is a specified amount of
surrender charge. The insurance company will pay Tai Wo Tong
Pharmaceutical a guaranteed interest of 4.0% per annum for
the first three years, followed by minimum guaranteed interest
rate of 2.25% per annum or above 2.25% per annum for the
following years.

At 31 March 2016, the deposit and prepayments for life
insurance policies amounted to approximately HK$4,850,000
(2015: Nil), with approximately HK$55,000 (2015: Nil) being
included in trade and other receivables.

The deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies are
denominated in United States Dollar (‘US$”).

Bk 43 Y 0 A B i

18. ABREZEERANNRE

a0 FE28FT it - 12015F6 818 ¢
AEBREAMEREE (FE)BR
NAI(TAMERIZE|) 2 2 EBARKE-
20134 - KFIE B 22 R B A &) 7]
YASBRE BEARREZTZ IR
ERBRBEZTRR-BERE K
MERBELSIZARREFBEA B
REE#2(E 52,000,000 7T (FHE R4
75 115,600,0007T ) © A E R EEH T
N TE - #2 £ 671,383%% 7T (FBE R L
75 #5,287,0007T) - BIERELE B A
HAR) (R 840,283 T (FE R LB K
314,0007T) o A FE B B2 A] B8 BF 48 1F
RE WEHHEBHZRERESEE
W3R & - bt R FE () 3R I8671,383% 7T
MR EBFAERETRE RIRER
S ([BEEE])MET I W
HIER A NEET2EZERTF
BE-RBRAFAKBNRE=ZFRAANE
BB B F40%MIRFEF S HiE
FEESKEREBENEREGF225%%F
F2.25% A £ f e

M2016F3A31H  ASREZIEES R
TE S 3R A #9785 4,850,0007T (2015
&) #)7%8¥55,0007T (20154 ¢
) DET ANE 5 R H A FEUGRIA

ASREZIES RIANFKIATIAETT
([ETl)atE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok B T 0 e Y i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

19. INVENTORIES 19. &
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRETT BT T
Raw materials R 1,625 1,791
Finished products for resale HEEKX R 11,456 17,099
13,081 18,890
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EZ R HAtEEWFIE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Trade receivables =) 1 G0 25,333 21,510
Prepayments to suppliers m) L FE P TR 3RIR 583 -
Prepaid lease payments T AEERE 976 663
Prepayments for other expenses H i BN HIE 5,641 3,509

Other deposits (mainly including HEike (XERE

rental and building management HeEREFERERS)

fee deposits) 2,285 1,107
Other receivables H h fE WK IE 3,301 105
38,119 26,894
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 JA 5 e W

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ES REHMERRIE &)

(Continued)

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period, presented based
on invoice date:

A TERBERRAEENE 5 R W
REMRER DT GRERAHES)

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

B¥ETT BT T

0-30 days 0£30K 12,138 7,163
31-60 days 31E60K 6,652 8,827
61-90 days 61290k 4,690 4,206
Over 90 days B @90K 1,853 1,314
25,333 21,510

The Group’s sales to most customers are made on cash on
delivery, whilst the Group generally allows an average credit
period of 60 days (with 15 days of grace period in certain
cases) to certain major trade customers with established
trading records.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customers.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
below for aging analysis) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an
allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it
have a legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the
Group to the counterparty.

AEBRAABIFPHHEEAGRM
R NET MAKE-—RETRS
AHRHFNETEIEEHEFE0KRE
FHEEH HETHERATNMEAIGKR
RIRA-

REMREAHZF A AEBFEE
EEPHEEEIRMREPEEEER
PREE -

EXRBZEHERERARER &
SsHREEHNEE (R TIXERED
) ERREEERYEHIRENE
HRERESRIDBR R AIWE - ANk
EUYERAERERREREB K
SEWEI LS BRT A TAEAR
KRS EIE AR TR AR B R A
R FHEARBEBEZTEHRZ
SRTERER

E-R"EFH TEEE (BB ERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. ES R HMEWRKIE (&)
(Continued)
Aging of trade receivables that are past due but EEHERRENE S EBRHKIE
not impaired AR iR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRETT BT I
61-90 days 61290K 4,690 4,206
Over 90 days HEBI0K 1,853 1,314
6,543 5,520
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the FETESRWRFIARE ] UKE -

Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of each reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

At the end of the reporting period, the amount due from a
company controlled by a relative of Mr. Pang Siu Hin included in
the Group’s trade receivables are:

AEBEZERVEREEEZERRE

EMmEMR ERE S EUYGRIANE
ff'fé’%x% THIRERES - HREP
HRAREFPzHMETRHE QEE
R EFREEAR-

RBERR FAXREEE 5 BUK
HP AR AZ DT E — R BRIE
B A B RIA R

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Brighten Hong Limited BT HBR AR
(“Brighten Hong”) ([E5¥E17]) 1,514 -
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 JA 5 e W

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.001% to 5% (2015: 0.001% to 4.04%) per annum.

At 31 March 2016, certain of the Group’s bank balances
and cash with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$172,181,000 (2015: HK$11,958,000) were denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The government of the PRC has
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. ES R HMEMNKIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRETT BT T
Trade payables B P EMN A 7,646 10,246
Receipts in advance FEUR FR B 1,476 1,284

Accruals (mainly including salaries and  fEFtER (X283

advertising expenses) FekEERX) 17,345 15,902
26,467 27,432

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables
at the end of the reporting period, presented based on invoice
date:

ATERBERRAEBNE 5N

IR AR R DT (

REZAMET)

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETRT BT T

0-30 days 0Z30Kk 4,075 4,087
31-60 days 31E60K 1,925 4,119
61-90 days 61E90K 926 1,353
Over 90 days R HEI0K 720 687
7,646 10,246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fs o T A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # Z£2016F3431H 1 F/E

22. EFREMENTIE 2

RBERR GFALAEEEZE S ENK
EHhWEMNBEEZDTEENBEES
BN ARNRES:

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the amount due to a
company in which Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man
have beneficial interests included in the Group’s trade payables

are:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRETT BT I
Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical KA E R &2 - 289
23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. IRER B
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement MEEPTBRRRZENMS BT

EREREEENABDRYH - BIE
TSRS B IR IR &R AT an

of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

tax balances for financial reporting purposes: Ik
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ETT BT T
Deferred tax assets RIEFRTEE B 574 -
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFIEBE (574) -

RAFENMBEFECDHERBNTIZRE
EHBREREENEZSHOT :

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior years:

Licenses Tax losses Total
2 3: REBR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT T BT T

At 1 April 2014 and R2014F4 18 K
31 March 2015 20153 H31H - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B Bt B8 A A 840 (840) -
(Credit)/Charge to profit or loss (5t A\) /18 B2 (266) 266 -
At 31 March 2016 #20165E3A31H 574 (574) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

23. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At 31 March 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$19,390,000 (2015: HK$7,636,000) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of approximately HK$3,480,000
(2015: Nil) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$15,910,000 (2015:
HK$7,636,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses in Hong Kong may carry forward
indefinitely. The unrecognised tax losses in the PRC will expire
as follows:

Bk 43 Y 0 A B i

23. IEAERIIE (&)

MR2016%F3A31H KREBH KA
7% 78 185 18 49 /219,390,000 7T (2015
% 17,636,000/ 7T ) * A] B{EH SE AR 2K
i A o B BLa% 55 B 18 493,480,000/
7L (20165 T ) MREEMIBEE
AR T B AR - S BB ER T
15,910,000/ 7t (2015%F : 7,636,000
BT EREERIBEE - HAEIEE
1B PR B A 8 o R R P BT 7
BB T 71 B fE o

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ST T

Tax losses expiring in T I B R e Y AR TS S 1R
- 201510 2016 —2015%F £20164F - 2,577
- 2017 t0 2018 —2017F 220184 2,034 2,120
- 2018 t0 2019 —2018%F £20194F 913 952
- 2020 to 2021 —2020%F £2021%F 3,926 -
6,873 5,649

At 31 March 2016, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$361,000 (2015: HK$2,700).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

720163 A31H » AREE &) AT 1R E
B 1% 2 = 49 5361,000/8 7T (2015%F :
2,700/ 7T ) ° A AR A% ) 2 LA & -
W ER AT IIRE R EEEER
EETTBEE -

E-R"EFH TEEE (BB ERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk B T 0 e W i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, IR
Number Share
of shares capital
BinE ;.23
HK$’000
BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRAECA0E L 2 E B
Authorised: EE:
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 A1H 800,000,000 80,000
Increase in number of authorised EERMGEB G (FEEG))
shares (Note (i) 1,200,000,000 120,000
At 31 March 2015 and 20153 H318 &
31 March 2016 20163 A31H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBE:
At 1 April 2014 201454 A1H 300,000,000 30,000
Capitalisation issue (Note (i) B A 31T (M) 300,000,000 30,000
Issue of new shares (Note (iii)) BATHTRRAD (B 5 Gii) ) 200,000,000 20,000
At 31 March 2015 20153 A31H 800,000,000 80,000
Issue of shares on exercise of share EITEBAREMZHITRG
options (Note (i) (MF5EGV)) 468,000 47
At 31 March 2016 R20165F3A31H 800,468,000 80,047
Notes: BEE:

(i)

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the sole shareholder
of the Company on 25 September 2014, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from HK$80,000,000 to
HK$200,000,000 by the creation of an additional 1,200,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each, ranking pari passu with the existing shares
in all respects.

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the sole shareholder
of the Company on 25 September 2014 and conditional upon the
share premium account of the Company being credited as a result
of the issue of shares pursuant to the placing and public offering of
the Company’s shares, the Company issued additional 300,000,000
shares, credited as fully paid, to the shareholder of the Company on
16 October 2014.

0

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)~ On 16 October 2014, upon its listing on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, the Company issued 200,000,000 new ordinary shares
at an offer price of HK$1.18 each and raised gross proceeds of
approximately HK$236,000,000.

(iv)  On 18 December 2015, 468,000 share options were exercised at a
subscription price of HK$0.826 per share, resulting in the issue of
468,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each. All these shares rank pari
passu with existing shares in all respects.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company’s pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 25 September 2014 to recognise the contribution
of certain employees, executives or officers of the Group who
have made or will make to the growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
might be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
24,640,000.

No further options could be granted by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

At 31 March 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 23,172,000 (2015:
24,640,000), representing 2.89% (2015: 3.08%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date.

24.

25.

s 3 Y 0 A B i

B (4)
Mizx: (&)

(i)  P2014%F10H168  REZPTER &
Mg NRRABIAGBIAGETTHEER
% 17200,000,000/8 ¥ & & % - 215 AT
15 R TH 48 58 £9236,000,0007% 7T °

(iv) 72015125188 + 468,00017 & 5 42
RER0.826B THREBEITE &
£468,000/% & ix E 1E0.107%8 ST 1) & i
FRERETT - R AR ERMD S E IR
BERHZHEREFMA -

I BER AV
BRAFAREMNBRES

ARG ERARAEEREREE
(IBRAFREERBRESS]) BRI
2014F9 H25 B mia 2 RATRELN -
NEEAEEETEE THRABXK
=B A BE RS B8R FTED s
IEHMER -

BIFE X ARSI ERET ST 8
BEZBREMSEOBROHEE RS
T & #8iB24,640,0000% % (5 °

FARRBBDRB X ER EHR
RRARPNEREERAFEERBR
RERTEE — PRI B

2016F3A31H  BIEEBH X A
EREREERE R RITERD
B AR i B AR 10 8K B /228,172,000
% (20154 : 24,640,0000% ) * #8 & 7
RARARRZBAEBITRM 22.89%
(20154 :3.08% ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share

25.

IRBHBERNNK 2
BRAFAREMNBRES

(%)

RIBERAFE S B RESTBIMEX

Option Scheme are as follows: HE R E BN
Number of Exercise price
Tranche Date of grant options granted per share  Vesting period Exercisable period
#R 15 B &8 MERERHSE BRITER BB TR
1 25/09/2014 23,040,000 HK$0.826/87C  25/09/2014 - 16/10/2015 -
15/10/2019 24/09/2024
2 25/09/2014 1,600,000 HK$0.826/8 7L 25/09/2014 - 16/10/2015 -
15/10/2017 24/09/2024
Notes: (TEE

(@  Tranche 1 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall vest as follows:

(i)

(il

(v)

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and
exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2018 and
exercisable from 16 October 2018 to 24 September 2024;
and

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2019 and
exercisable from 16 October 2019 to 24 September 2024.
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20%H i A% 7 #5 7120169104
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H Z=20244%9F 24 A BRI 7T{£ :

20% 1) i IR 1 1§ 720174104
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16H 578 & A A20184 10816
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Tranche 2 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall vest as follows:

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and
exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024;

(ii) 30% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024;
and

(i)  40% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during

25. LR AERNSR (2

BERAFARENBRES
(#)

B (&)

() REBEERXAFEESHBRAETEMIE
HEVHLRBEE RS R B AN T

0] 30%HY i A% 7 #5 712015410 A
16H 578 & 1] A2015610 816
H £2024F9 A24H HAM 171 ;

(i) 30%H) FE Iz 4 i 7 20164F10 4
16H 5 8 & Al 201610816
B ZE2024F9 A24 8 BRI 171
54

(i)  40%HY B8 AR 4 # 742017410 A
16H 558 M A A2017410A16
H ZE2024%F9 A 24 #RI1TIE -

TEREBEFAXRBNERLRAEE
RISt SR T 2 B E ) -

the year:
Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding at during during Outstanding at
Category of participant Tranche 01/04/2015 the year the year 31/03/2016
#2015%481H ##20165£3A31H
BHZEN #R RITHE FRTEHA Fhiglh#E RITHE
Directors 1 21,600,000 - - 21,600,000
S
Employees 1 1,440,000 (288,000) - 1,152,000
E8&
2 1,600,000 (180,000) (1,000,000) 420,000
24,640,000 (468,000) (1,000,000) 23,172,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,320,000
RERTITHE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.826/%5 7T HK$0.826/% 7T HK$0.82678 T HK$0.82678 7T
TR EMETFHE

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price at the date of exercise is
HK$1.44 (2015: Nil).

MERNETFEZBREDS  RITE
BHZRENEF I AE1.448 T
(20154 : &) o

ZE-AEER TEEE (BB ERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 25. LR AERNSTRK &)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRLHEREABRESE
(%)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TEERBLE-—FERARRRERAH
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during HENBREAZBET CERESZ
the prior year: & :
Exercised
Outstanding at during Outstanding at
Category of participant Tranche 01/04/2014 the year 31/03/2015
720144810 12015538310
SREFH #R T E FRTEHE FITE
Directors 1 - 21,600,000 21,600,000
=
Employees 1 - 1,440,000 1,440,000
EE
2 - 1,600,000 1,600,000
- 24,640,000 24,640,000

Exercisable at the end of the year -

RERAITHE

Weighted average exercise price - HK$0.8267% 7T HK$0.8267% T
TEEME T

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the estimated fair value HE2015F3A31HILFE  BX AR
of the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at the BERBRESTEIIET 2 BRENK
date of grant is approximately HK$13,841,000. B B2 b5t A F{E A 513,841,000

BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price HK$1.180
Exercise price HK$0.826
Option life 10 years
Expected volatility 45.44%
Dividend yield 3.52%
Risk-free interest rate 2.03%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the share prices of comparable companies over the
previous ten years.

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 25 September 2014. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contribution that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on the
effective date of the Share Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company to
subscribe for the shares of the Company.

Bk 3 Y 0 A 0 B ik

25. IR R ERNNR (#)

BXRARBERBRESTE
(%)

“IRAHIREERLE AR AR B
BZRFE - FTEBEREZAFER

RAZz28YMBRENDENREE 2 REMR
FeBEREZEEEREE T EHRK
Z AR mEE e ER &
AT

f&(E 1.18078 7T
T1EE 0.826/8 7T
i 7 5 HA 104
SR 45.44%
A% Bk 25 R 3.52%
45 B\ F1| =R 2.03%

EHURIE DRABE T FALRAT
P (B 2 FE S22 e T EE E

BRRERT 8

KA BIRIE2014F9A25B B BN
RERFENIEIRER 8 ([IEREST
2l]) BB R AR BB -
WR AR R ERAEERLEAED
Mk AT REMIANEEEL 2 B R B AR
BBz B AEBRETEZE
MERETTF-o

RIBBRESS XRREEEAM
REERAEEBRFE#ER 2 A RIHZE
RAElZHMBRAZARES EE -
B BEAL TP HERN K2
AR BAASEBEER L AR
BEARNBIRMG 2 BARHE -

B ERERA R
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25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the period as the board of
directors may determine in granting the option but in any event
not exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of () the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

At 31 March 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 2,400,000 (2015: Nil), representing
0.30% (2015: Nil) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.
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25. ARG R ERNNR (#)

BRERTE (2)

RIZBE IR S AR BHEM A
Petgst & IRz B S k2 &
SRNHEE AR THFEBEARFN
B B 1TIR 230% - EARFEIAR
ABRERIEZIBERT  REMR—
FREMNERNALTERE RATERH
BB N2 BETRETEITR
BB NEHEBALQFHEMRFHEE %
TTRAD 2 1% o i [A) = B AR 08 37 3F
WTESR O ZBRES R 2 D&
BEBARARAZ01%LEERES
5,000,000/8 7T * BIZBE £ J 2| AR 7]
PR HEAE

ENERER ARABARARR A
BT (FRERBREZRE-B
PR R BB BES 8 2 RN ES
SRREEE 2 R B A (1
wanfa NS B R B HER +F)
RIS ) T IATT fiE

TEBRADNEFET HEETE
SR () 4 B E A 2 FRRAD 2 M B
ERRE B WA TSR ARG 2
49 U ¢ R iR 2 R R 2 O
BB

201643 A31 R @ IRIFHEREEIE
REEERITEZBRERY K2R
D88 A2,400,0000% (20154 : &) -
HERARARRZBEBEITRGOZ
0.30% (20154 : &) »



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

s 3 Y 0 A B i

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 25. U RERNMARK (#)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

BRERTE (2)

R PR T 2 8 8 OB 4 2 3¢
BT

Number of Exercise price

Tranche Date of grant options granted per share  Vesting period Exercisable period

#HR B AH MEEEHEE BERTER BENY TT{ER

1 28/04/2015 2,400,000 HK$1.460/87C  28/04/2015 - 28/04/2016 -
27/04/2018 27/04/2025

2 28/04/2015 8,000,000 HK$1.460/87C  28/04/2015 - 28/04/2016 -
27/04/2018 27/04/2025

3 02/07/2015 1,000,000 HK$1.380/%7C  02/07/2015 - 02/07/2016 -
01/07/2018 01/07/2025

Notes: B 5

(@)  Tranche 1 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest
as follows:

0} 30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2016 and exercisable

from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025;

(ii) 30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2017 and exercisable
from 28 April 2017 to 27 April 2025; and

(i)  40% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2018 and exercisable
from 28 April 2018 to 27 April 2025.

(b)  Tranche 2 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest
as follows:
(i) 37.5% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2016 and

exercisable from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025;

(ii) 37.5% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2017 and
exercisable from 28 April 2017 to 27 April 2025; and

(i)  25% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2018 and exercisable
from 28 April 2018 to 27 April 2025.

(@)  ARBRMBARERT BB AR R e
HEREaT

0] 30%HY B A% 1 1% 72201654 A28
H B & A R201654 A28H =
20254 A27 HEARI 171

(i) 30%HY fE B A S 71 20174F4 A28
H B K& Al 20174 H28H &
2025F4 A27 H BRI TR K

(i) 40%HY i AR 1 15 722018454 A28
H 5B & Al R2018F4 A28H &=
202554 A27 A EAR AT 1 -

(o) IRIRMEACHE RSB L At R2ME R i
H iR

(i) 37.5% i B # 75 722016454 H
280 57 8 & ] 1201644 A28 H
Z2025%4 A27 H AT (%

(i) 37.5%H fE AR #5 7201744 A
28H B8 K& Al A201744 A28H
E2025F4 A27 HEAMTT(E &

(i) 25%HY i A1 #8710 201854 728

HEE R A R2018F4 A28 &
20254 A27 A HARI T 1S -

B-AEEH TEEE (BB ERERAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

~ =, e
25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 25. URGAEBRNAR &)
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BIRRESTE (7)
Notes: (Continued) MisE: (&)
(¢)  Tranche 3 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall vest () IREEEARERT &I L A HR SRS AR 4
as follows: HEBIT
0] 37.5% of the options shall vest on 2 July 2016 and exercisable i) 37.5%H) 5 I 4 15 72201657 A
from 2 July 2016 to 1 July 2025; 2B B A R2016F7A2BE &=
20257 18 BT
(i) 37.5% of the options shall vest on 2 July 2017 and exercisable (i)  37.5%H) B BAE S 10201747 A
from 2 July 2017 to 1 July 2025; and 2EEG B KA R2017F7 A2 =
20257 H1HBiRITT6E : &
(i) 25% of the options shall vest on 2 July 2018 and exercisable (i) 25%F B B HE 8 702018457 H2
from 2 July 2018 to 1 July 2025. AR B X R2018F7A28 &
202547 B1H HIMTTE -
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREBFAARRRNEREEE
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the year: TR EER):
Granted Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2015 the year the year at 31/03/2016
#2015%4R1H FREH FRigl R2016E3A31A
2HERR #R RTHE #A BE RTHE
Directors 1 - 1,500,000 - 1,500,000
£
2 - 8,000,000 (8,000,000) -
Employees 1 - 300,000 - 300,000
==
3 - 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
Consultant 1 - 600,000 - 600,000
]
- 11,400,000 (9,000,000) 2,400,000
Exercisable at the end of the year -
RERATE
Weighted average exercise price - HK$1.453i 7T HK$1.4513 T HK$1.460% 7T

TEEEMEFIH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continueq)

No option under the Share Option Scheme was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed, during the prior year nor
outstanding as at 31 March 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, options under the
Share Option Scheme were granted on 28 April 2015 and 2
July 2015. The estimated fair values of the options granted to
directors and employees under the Share Option Scheme on
those dates are approximately HK$6,694,000 (2015: Nil) and
HK$566,000 (2015: Nil) respectively.

The Binomial Option Pricing Model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies

25

Bk 3 Y 0 A 0 B ik

ARG ARERBAR &)
BRERTE (2)

RIBEFE B AR I B8 I
ETEIR I 17 FESE R INERE
A% HE 201553 A31 B i AR TT(E °

HZE2016F3A31H IEFE KRR
201545288 K2015F7A2H 1R &
BRETERLERE - RZERE
RIEEREFESETESREENE
P& 1 5 A F B %) 56,694,000/ 7T
(20154 : &) & 566,000/%8 7t (2015
F:E)o

“HAANREERED ARG ER
Bz RFE-FTEBEREZAFER
RZBERBERDERES 2 &EM
Ao BREZEESEE T ZEER

with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. The 2RSS mLE e ER &
inputs into the model were as follows: ABBAT

Date of grant

|HB R 28/04/2015 02/07/2015
Share price I (& HK$1.460/%87C  HK$1.350/8 7T
Exercise price I E HKS$1.4607% 7  HK$1.3807% 7T
Option life % e F Bf 10 years4F 10 years®F
Expected volatility TEERK 1R 42.90% 43.13%
Dividend yield B% B Hem 0.68% 1.48%
Risk-free interest rate 2 [2 B 1) 2 1.38% 1.88%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the share prices of comparable companies over the
previous ten years.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$6,142,000 (2015: HK$2,402,000) for the year ended
31 March 2016 in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

BHKELEABETFALEAR
P (B 2 JEE SR B T B 7

REBDREE2016F3A318 IH4
EHREBAAARE 2BREZ
7 48 %8 496,142,000/ 7T (20154
2,402,000/ 7T ) °
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to
approximately HK$1,481,000 (2015: HK$1,233,000) for the
year, and represent contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F o T A Y i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

6. RIkEF &

AEBRAERTENAERBETRH
BEMEREEAE A ENEEBY
RAEBEHEE  AXFEAESE
TER-

AREERFEEE Ty BB RILE
BREERAKENENOKE - AE
BRI &R —E B2 L RER
BAEEEL R IABZBNLE -
AEBGLRARBAGENTEERR
TR R E K o

AEERFABEIEMEERER
HRRE SRR 48 5 2 %) 51,481,000 T
(20154 :1,233,0008 L) * AAEE
BIEZEHER TP EHZE
ETEIEM A MK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

s 3 Y 0 A B i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

(@) Transactions with related parties

During the year, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties:

27. BELHE
HBEELTNRS

RAFE  NEBEEFENR L
THEARRZS

2016 2015
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
MESHE BE XHHEH BWTT BT T
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan  Rental expenses for premises 497 197
LLai Man (executive directors of (Note (i)
the Company) WERSFH I (M)
ZOTREREBER L
(RRBMITESE) Purchase of properties 18,800 -
(Note (i)
A (M 3EG))
Acquisition of subsidiaries 9,800 -
(Note (iii))
5t B BT 8 2 1 (G )
Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical Packing costs (Note (iv)) 789 10,293
(@ company in which BEKA (HiFE(v))
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and
Ms. Kwan Lai Man have Research and development - 66
beneficial interests) expenses (Note (v))
AMERE (ZOITEER HEmx (V)
HREENLHEERER
pd/NCTD)
Brighten Hong (a company Sales of goods (Note (vi)) 7,684 7,735

controlled by a relative of

Mr. Pang Siu Hin)
#IET (B 0TkEZ

—ZFBEH 2 RF)

EmiHE (FEwW))

—E—XNFER

fTEEE (AR ERAERAT 137
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fa o W A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

27. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

)

(iv)

(v

(b)

The rental expenses for premises payable to the above
related parties are based on tenancy agreements entered into
between the parties involved. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, these transactions have been entered into on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of the
Group’s business.

The consideration was determined by reference to the
prevailing market price of similar properties in close proximity.

The consideration was determined by reference to the
business valuation prepared by an independent valuer.

Products packed by Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical were carried
out in the normal course of business at mutually agreed prices
and terms.

Research and development service was provided by Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical based on mutually agreed terms.

The sales to Brighten Hong were carried out in the normal
course of business at mutually agreed prices and terms.

Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of outstanding balances with related parties of the
Group at the end of the reporting period are set out in
Notes 20 and 22.

(c)

Compensation of key management

personnel

The emoluments of the Company’s directors, who are
also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in Note 10.

27. BELBE &)

HBEELTNRS (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)
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EBEERSEE-
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KM BIBE TR 75 165 5 9 163K
TG B R TS o

ST f L R 38 T B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 1 June 2015, the Group acquired the entire interest
in Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical for the consideration of
HK$9,800,000. Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical and its subsidiary
is principally engaged in packing of products.

28. W E 1 A

R2015F6 4180 AEBE KB KM E
R 80 2 FPAR#E - X (B 29,800,000/
Lo AMEBREER HHIE QR EBR
EEMBE-

HK$’000
BRTT
Consideration transferred EEEAE
Cash B 9,800

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$248,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as expenses in the
current year, within the “administrative expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

U BB HERARN AN 40248,000/8 TE R E ¥
FREPHRACDHNAFEELGEAE
BmREMEEPER TR AT
HER BRI

HK$’000
BT
Assets acquired and liabilities PR HkEZ
recognised at the date of RERBIEZAF/NOT:
acquisition are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment e RN L] 42
Intangible assets BV EE 5,090
Deposit and prepayments ASREZZER
for life insurance policies B FRIB 4,864
Inventories BE 2,765
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E A FE W kI8 981
Tax refundable ARET K 78
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE 615
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMER KB (766)
13,669

The trade and other receivables acquired with a fair value of
approximately HK$106,000 at the date of the acquisition had
gross contractual amounts of approximately HK$106,000,
representing the best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows expected to be collected.

7 Uk B8 B H A B £9106,000% 7T 2
EREE S M EMERRIBEZ BEH
©FA#9106,000/8 7T 1HE R TEHRH
PRUCE B R 2 & 43R & R fEM
afe

ZE-AREFR TEEE (BB ERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bk B T 0 e W i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

28. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continve)  28. WWiBHI B2 7 (&)

HK$’000
BT
Bargain purchase gain arising on KigEEZ
acquisition BEKBKS
Consideration transferred EEENE 9,800
Less: Net assets acquired B BWEEEFE (13,669)
Bargain purchase gain arising WEEEZ
on acquisition ELE e (3,869)
HK$’000
BETT
Net cash outflow on acquisition WEEZHREBRE
Consideration paid in cash ERBESRE 9,800
Less: cash and cash equivalent B ERERE RIRE
balances acquired EEMEH 615)
9,185

Included in the profit for the year is approximately
HK$8,083,000 loss attributable to Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical
and its subsidiary. Revenue for the year includes approximately
HK$24,000 generated from Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical and its
subsidiary for the year.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2015, the
total group revenue for year would have been approximately
HK$227,460,000, and the profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$20,925,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2015, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

F [ % F 7R #98,083,00078 T & 18 57 /B
RAMEREREMNB AR - ANFE
ZWABREFARGAMERERH
B /8~ 7] #9 #924,00078 7T ©

i B KM E R EER2015F4A1HE
BAAAEEARFENWRABER
%9 /227,460,000 7T * 1 AN F [ 7l
15 47/520,925,000/8 7T © 2 & RHEH
SRR WHEAEERZBEER
2015F4 A1H R MERE L 2 W=
REEIEET  TRIERREFZ TR -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2016



28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 J S e M

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F /&

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical been acquired at the
beginning of the current year, the directors have calculated
depreciation of plant and equipment acquired on the basis of
the fair values arising in the initial accounting for the business
combination rather than the carrying amounts recognised in the
pre-acquisition financial statements.

28. WHEFIB AR (&)

REEAREE [EE | WA K m MK -

BB AMERBERNAFEND &
£EBERODREXRBT A VB ARE
B A (B T YRR A B 7S R R P RE AR
MEREER ERE RREOE-

OPERATING LEASES 20. KEHE
The Group as lessee EXEEEEEEA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Minimum lease payments paid under  #&L&HEH N HHKIE
operating leases MER K
— Premises — 4,214 4,027
— Office equipment —WRERE 943 911
5,157 4,938

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

R EEERE NEERE A
MR HON AR ZERE KA
AER BRI

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT IT BET T

Within one year —FR 1,013 4,934
In the second to fifth years FEFRF

inclusive (EEMFBRELTA) 2,607 3,513

3,620 8,447

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its premises and office equipment.

ZE-AEER TEEE (BB ERERAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fa o W A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

29. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 29 WEHE (#)
The Group as lessor TEEESHES
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted R ERREARE AEEDEEAYR
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: FIENA T RREEMEERNK:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BT T
Within one year BR—FRA 213 165
In the second to fifth years F_EFERF
inclusive (BERMERELEAN) - 270
213 435
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. EAREIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T

Capital expenditure contracted for but = F] 4B R ELR A R E
not provided for in the consolidated BENEARRX
financial statements in respect of
— acquisition of property, plant and — WYX BB kR
equipment 2,067 1,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

31. LITIGATION

On 18 May 2011, Hin Sang Hong Company Limited ("Hin Sang
Hong (HK)") entered into a distribution agreement with Kingdom
Overseas Limited (“Kingdom Overseas”) pursuant to which Hin
Sang Hong (HK) was appointed as the exclusive distributor in
Hong Kong and Macau for three infant formula products. In July
and August 2011, Hin Sang Hong (HK) issued purchase orders
in respect of the infant formula products but Kingdom Overseas
failed to deliver some of the products to Hin Sang Hong (HK)
and therefore, in breach of the distribution agreement. Further,
in February 2012, Kingdom Overseas issued a termination
notice to Hin Sang Hong (HK) to terminate the distribution
agreement forthwith. As such, Hin Sang Hong (HK) initiated
legal proceeding against Kingdom Overseas for breach of
distribution agreement and claim for loss and damages in the
amount of approximately HK$54.3 million and the substantial
proportion of the damages claim comes from a claim for loss
of future profit due to the breach of distribution agreement by
Kingdom Overseas. Likewise, Kingdom Overseas also launched
a counterclaim against Hin Sang Hong (HK) for an approximate
sum of HK$51.0 million as damages for alleged loss of future
profit for unable to secure an alternative distributor replacing
Hin Sang Hong (HK).

On 6 January 2015, lawyers representing Kingdom Overseas
has formally ceased to act for Kingdom Overseas in the above
action. The counterclaim in the sum of HK$51.0 million against
Hin Sang Hong (HK) was dismissed by the Court on 5 February
2015. Since then Hin Sang Hong (HK) proceeded with its
claim against Kingdom Overseas alone. On 20 April 2016,
the Court has granted a judgement in favor of Hin Sang Hong
(HK) against Kingdom Overseas and ordered that Kingdom
Overseas shall pay (i) HK$12.6 million being damages to Hin
Sang Hong (HK) with interest at prime plus 1% per annum
from 1 January 2014 to the date of judgement; (i) HK$208,672
being fix damages to Hin Sang Hong (HK) with interest at same
rate from the date of writ to the date of judgement; and (i) the
costs of the action to Hin Sang Hong (HK).

31.
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anp
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A

n

MR2011F5 4188 ' $TETER A A
(MPTHET (BB HEERBFINER
NAI(T2FFIHN )T L D EHZE
Bt $TET (BB EZTEA=-BE
NABEFTEMNEERBRPIBR D H
e R2011F7TARBA HTETT (F
BB TR ERELIREE
HE2GINRBEEMITETT (BB 8
HoEM AERD HE LI
2012921 - BRAEINAPTETT (&
78 ) BEH— DRI BAARBRIEZ S
HinE B TET (BB )RER
DEHERZEEIMNELERFAR
BRI KSASEBEBETMNEBELARESTE
B ERPATONBERERRIK
BE2F8NER D H BT EK AR
Hw M B KB R o [ - 2FFIMR
METETT (BB RELO51.088ET
ZREAR ERBERAEEZEGARE
PTHEIT (B LR MEBUR K%
MBLOIBEEE-

201561 A6H 2R 2 R KR &2
B ERNF L AR FARREKE
B INTE JERER2015F2 A58 &
BT HITETT (BB N51.088E T
CRER WE FTEIT(BER)ESR
HEITH B EFHFINY R R - R20165F4
A208 - EEEELITET (FH8) &
HEHGIINBEFRAR THTE2H
BINBT A NEHPTEST (BB ER W
1BK12.6 8 BB L K #Z3IE B20144F
1A1ERZHRA S IHERESRF X
SIM %t EFE: (EITET (F
75 ) ¥ AR A & E 18 2K #9208,67278 7T &
BEZEAMRZEHRE BIEEARF
REFEOFE  RipTET () &K
ERHERITEN PTE RIS o

PTAESE (B ZRERLQE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company (comprising issued share capital and
reserves).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of the capital, and will balance the
gearing ratio through the payment of dividends and new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

32. EXREEE

AEBERHEARUABRASEZE
BEURKERLE AREBELCER
B HFEHAZTERARRZ
O R B BB RE HEFHF D

AEENERNERESARRAEEA
FElE s (REE BITRA R M) -

AEEZERBEL R ZALERA
BABER - AEBEREARARE
AR AR Z AR - 35 E B S R
BRBEITHI A RBITHERSNE
EERBEHAFEERBELR

REERRERHERB2EREE
g

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BETT BT T

Debt (i) (=0 A() - -
Equity (i) 18 25 (i) 346,498 334,682
Gearing ratio BEXRBELE -% -%

(i) Debt includes long— and short-term borrowings.

(i Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

() EBReEEREAREHRER-

(i) HEBEAEEMEERNREM-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Bk 3 Y 0 A 0 B ik

33. 2@ T A

Categories of financial instruments (@ @I AR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYETT BT I
Financial assets EMEE
Loans and receivables EHREYE
Deposit and prepayments for life ~ ASREZixE &
insurance policies AR RIR 4,850 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H MW RIE 30,855 22,667
Bank balances and cash IRITEHRER S 239,742 264,393
275,447 287,060
Financial liabilities eMmaE
Financial liabilities at BRI AT EZ
amortised cost TEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMER IR 24,991 26,148
Financial risk management objectives and (b) HBREAREEEEREX

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include deposit
and prepayments for life insurance policies, trade and
other receivables, bank balances, trade and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
certain of these financial instruments include market
risk (including foreign currency risk, and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

AEEZIESMTABREAS
REZRERBANFR -EHK
Hib RUHRIE SR1THEHR EH
REMENRE ZEEH TR
ZFRBRE AR ERE - BE
TREzRTARBZRARERE
M5 AR (BIEIMNE R R K& =
R EFERBRERBDE S
%o B BRI ADRE 2 F R 2 K
RENTX -EREHZERR
ETEEMEEUEREERA
R R EUE 18 B

PTAEEE (ER) ZRERDH
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 3. eWMIA(#)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, hence risk exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge against the
foreign currency risk exposure. However, the management
of the Group will consider to hedge these balances should
the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(b)

MHREREREEEREE
(%)

S

AEERETEMEENABN
SNEEFHE - AN S [ T B B RO
BELAZRR AEBEIWLEF]L
EARMA QO ER NS R - A
m AEEEEERNARER
ZRYEI R LR

RS HARE A5 SR A - AREE AN
MIAEZEBEEREKARZ
BREEWT :

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BT T
Monetary assets denominated in: LA TFIINESHER G & E
-RMVB - AR 175,226 14,469
— United States dollar (“‘US$”) -7 ([%Ex]) 5,529 6
— New Taiwan dollar (‘NT$”) —Fak((Fwak%l) 1,592 2,111
Monetary liabilities denominated in: LA T FIIMNEHER S A & :
- RVB —AR% 5,948 6,104
- NT$ —¥a% 1,317 1,187

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the currency risk associated
with US$ and HK$ is considered minimal. The Group is
mainly exposed to the effect of fluctuation in RMB and
NT$.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Bk 3 Y 0 A 0 B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

33. 2@ T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) MERREEBFEREE
policies (Continued) (#%&)
Foreign currency risk (Continueqd) IR fE (4E)
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% TREEASELHEBTLLARKE
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB and NT$. RETE ¥ LA KT B10%.2 8%
10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign EFBE - 10%AERTREE
currency risk internally to key management personnel and BIR A B R INE [ B B AT R
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably Az BRRELE  BNEEELHI
possible change in foreign exchange rates. A positive MEFE K H) & IR A pe B 8 2 5T A o
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit and TXFTIEBERKBITH B
a negative number indicates a decrease in post-tax profit INEFHE10%1E 50 T BR 18 4 FI
where HK$ strengthens 10% against the relevant foreign - B BRI KRR & N
currencies. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against the Do gt BT HAB R INE B2 [E10%
relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and s - #m A g E £ 8% RE
opposite impact on the profit. Rz
Sensitivity analysis BEE 5T
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Impact of RMB AR¥zZRE
Profit or loss bi=E (16,928) (837)
Impact of NT$ Fakzre
Profit or loss B (28) 92)
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ARBEERBR GREDITAR
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of the Wi pe R BR[E A 2 FNE =B - B R
inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the 5 B A RS 2 [ B I S S gk
end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure REFEERAEAZ 2R -
during the year.
TE-AEFR TEEE (BEBR)ERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is primarily exposed to fair value interest rate

risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the credit risk of the Group is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation or high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

33. &M I A (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The maturity dates for
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

33. @@ T A
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FEERBESRBAIE A%
EERTAREEERSTHN
RERRESEBYWKT  LAIAR
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Liquidity table B ELI*
On demand Total Total
Non-derivative or less than 1103 undiscounted carrying
financial liabilities 1 month months cash flows amount
BEXS —E XUEHSE RE
FIEEMAR Pr—EA =EA nERH EHdE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
2016 2016
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNFUE 21,244 3,747 24,991 24,991
2015 20155
Trade and other payables B REMENTRE 21,920 4,228 26,148 26,148
TE-AEFR TEEE (BEBR)ERERAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost using the discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting
period are set out below.

33. &M I A (&)

34.

© EMIAZAVEE

WHRAEETHEEL L FEFEZ
EHAEER fﬁi‘éﬁ B2 A FlE

ARREREFEERTARSE
MEDMIRBIHEKNATEZ SR
BEMEMBBEZATE.

ARBEERR REAMBR
RNRHHERATN R EREE
ke@aEzREERE QT E
(EREES

ARFMBRBFE

R R RES - AL BB AT
BRI -

Place of .
. . . . Proportion
incorporation/ Class of Paid up issued/ .
. . . ownership interest
establishment/  shares registered capital
. u held by the Company
Name of operations held BEBTR EATBERERNALH
LB,
subsidiary B3 BHEER WERE Principal activities
MELFRE B/ BEHE R HEfEF 2016 2015 FTEER
Hin Sang Group British Virgin Ordinary US$30,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Holding Limited Islands L@k 30,000% 7T (direct) (direct)  BEAER
MEEERRERAR  RBELES (E&) (B#%)
HM Advertising Hong Kong Ordinary HK$880,000 100% 100% Formulating and implementing
Company Limited A% LTak 880,0007% ¢ (indirect) (indlirect) overall marketing and branding
(H#) (H#) strategies and preparing and

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 34. XX R KB A RFRE (4)

COMPANY (Continued)
Place of X
i i i i Proportion
incorporation/ Class of Paid up issued/ .
establishment/  shares registered capital ownership interest
Name of operations held BBTR held by the Company
- ERREARARERLR - o
subsidiary s/ BERR WERE/ Principal activities
MEARRE B/ HBEHS R HEmEF 2016 2015 IERH
Chong Sang (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,800 100% 100% Trading and distribution of skin care
Company Limited ) LR 1,800/ 7T (indirect) (indlirect) products, personal care products
BlE(BE)BRARA (F%) (H#%) and household products
BERDHEEER EAERER
REEER
Hin Sang Hong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$280,000 100% 100% Investment holding; brand
Company Limited ) LR 280,000 7t (indirect) (indirect) development and management;
PTEITBRAE (M%&) (F#) and development, sales and
distribution of health care
products, personal care products
and household products
REER: mERERER: kA
¥ HERDHEREBER BEAZ
BEMRREER
Hin Sang Hong PRC Registered RMB65,000,000 100% 100% Wholesale of health care products
Trading (Shenzhen) H capital AR #65,000,0007C (indirect) (indlirect) of Hin San (#74) and skin care
Limited** AR (F%) (H#%) products of Beautymate (L0
HTETE S ORI ) inthe PRC
BRAR R B ETENREERR
ENOHHEEER
Beautymate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100% Online sale of products distributed
Hong Kong Limited ) LR 10,0004 1T (indirect) (indirect) and/or developed by the Group
(M%) (M) WEHEEAREDER/KEEH
Em
Hong Kong Pharmaceutical British Virgin Ordinary US$2,000 100% 100% Investment holding
& Research Institute Islands LR 2,000% 7T (indirect) (indirect)  REZRK
Co., Ltd. EBERHES (M%) (E#%)
BEBUERRMERAA
Yaome Nihon British Virgin Ordinary US$2,000 100% 100% Inactive
Corporation Islands LR 2,000% 7T (indirect) (indirect) &R
AABEALHAEH ABERHES (M%) (E#%)

ZE-AREFFER TEEE (BB ERERATF
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

34. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 34. AR KB A RFRE (4

COMPANY (Continued)
Place of .
i i i i Proportion
incorporation/ Class of Paid up issued/ .
establishment/  shares registered capital ownership interest
Name of operations held BBTR held by the Company
- ERREARARERLR - o
subsidiary HERmEI BERG #ERE/ Principal activities
MEARRE B/ HBEHS R HEmEF 2016 2015 IERH
Hong Kong Medicine British Virgin Ordinary US$2,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Manufactory Islands L@ 2,000 7T (indirect) (indirect)  REER
Holdings Co., Ltd. EERIHS (FI#&) (F#)
EBHEHERERAR
Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 100% 100% Inactive
& Research Institute ) LR 1T (indirect) (indirect) ~ MER
Co., Limited (M%) (F#)
EERERRMERRA
Beautymate Taiwan Registered NT$24,000,000 100% 100% Wholesale of skin care products
International Limited* = capital 24,000,000%7 & (indirect) (indlirect) under the brand of Beautymate
ENOFERER R R HMER (M%) (E#%) (EMOF) in Taiwan
ReEHEENOFRES
EEEM
Tai Wo Tong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$24,000,000 100% - Packing of products developed and
Pharmaceutical ) LR 24,000,000/ 7T (indirect) sold by the Group
{Hong Kong) Company (M%) BEAEERERHENER
Limited
AME G E
(BR)ERDA
Tai Wo Tong Company Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% - Packing of products for individual
Limited ) LR 10,000/ 1T (indirect) retailers
AHNEBRAR (M%) RERIZERREERBERY
Hin Fai International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 68% - Online sale of products developed
Holding Company ) LR 10,000,000/ 7T (indirect) by the Group
Limited (M%) BLHEARERENER
fTRERERER A
* The English name is for identification only. * A TEERER -
# A wholly foreign-owned enterprise. # —MENEEE -
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 35. KRB RN KRR F#ME
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EMEB R RNIEE 71,618 71,618
Current assets RBHEE
Prepayments SEERE L 309 313
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 253,638 33,963
Bank balances RITAEER 103 204,710
254,050 238,986
Total assets BEHE 325,668 310,604
Current liabilities mB AR
Accruals EEER 60 20
Amount due to a subsidiary e — BB A R 5RIA 4 -
64 20
Net current assets mEEERE 253,986 238,966
Total assets less current liabilities HWEMERTH&RE 325,604 310,584
Capital and reserves EEXR G
Share capital & 7 80,047 80,000
Reserves f#f 245,557 230,584
Total equity g k] 325,604 310,584
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved ARR A B BN FR ER2016F6 728
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June HES=efEREETE W HIA
2016 and are signed on its behalf by: TEERREE:
Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
BOH MRES
Director Director
EF EFE

—E-AEEH TEEE (BB 2ERERLAT 153
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fa o W A B

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 220163431 H 1 F/E

AR B RO Rk A

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (#%&)
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: EAFEMEE
Share
Share options Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BRPRE MWEEE FERT &kt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT AT T BT T
At 1 April 2014 7201444 A18 41,618 - 61 41,679
Profit for the year F R - - 8,770 8,770
Capitalisation issue BRI (30,000) - - (30,000)
Issue of new shares BTG 216,000 - - 216,000
Expense incurred in connection  FA 31T HT D
with issue of new shares EEZHAY (8,267) - - (8,267)
Recognition of equity-settled BREREEURD B
share-based payments ERHAR - 2,402 - 2,402
At 31 March 2015 20154 3A31H 219,351 2,402 8,831 230,584
Profit for the year FRE T - - 24,496 24,496
Dividends recognised as BRRD KK E
distribution - - (16,005) (16,005)
Issue of shares on exercise of AT R
share options BT 598 (258) - 340
Recognition of equity-settled REREBEURND A
share-based payments ERE R - 6,142 - 6,142
At 31 March 2016 #2016%£3A31H 219,949 8,286 17,322 245,557
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2201643531 H I F/E

36. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@

On 27 April 2016, Fullshare Holdings Limited (“Fullshare”)
entered into a conditional subscription agreement with the
Company for the subscription of 250,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Fullshare Subscription
Shares”) at HK$1.18 per share. The Fullshare Subscription
Shares were issued to Fullshare on 24 June 2016.

On 27 April 2016, Zall Capital Limited (“Zall Capital”)
entered into a conditional subscription agreement with
the Company for the subscription of 30,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Zall Capital Subscription
Shares”) at HK$1.18 per share. The Zall Capital
Subscription Shares were issued to Zall Capital on 24
June 2016.

On 27 April 2016, the Company entered into an
agreement with Fullshare for the formation of a new
company to engage in the development of mother and
child health products, pharmaceutical factory, hospital,
medical centre and related services. Pursuant to the
terms of the agreement, the Company shall subscribe
for 306,000,000 shares of the new company for
HK$30,600,000 in cash, representing 51% of the total
issued share capital of the new company, and Fullshare
shall subscribe for 294,000,000 shares of the new
company for HK$29,400,000 in cash, representing 49%
of the total issued share capital of the new company. The
formation of the new company is subject to independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing
Rules. On 23 June 2016, the formation of the new
company was approved by the independent shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting.

On 15 June 2016, Hong Kong Pharmaceutical &
Research Institute Co. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party for the acquisition of a
property at a consideration of HK$68,800,000.

36. REHBREMH

(@)

R2016F4F27H LA
PRAF ([EE])BEARRFEL
ERHRERE UIESRRK
M1A8EB T 2 BRRE AR A
250,000,0000% & i % ([ &R
BRGHO]) ERABRHOHERN
201656 A24R 31T F L% -

M2016%F4 A27H © Zall Capital
Limited ([Zall Capital | ) 27X 22
AR B IRHRE R E  NirE
A 51188 T 2 BRRE XN
A 7]30,000,0000% & 3@ f% ([ Zall
CapitaliB##E %5 | ) ° Zall Capital
R B 1201656 A24H %
77 ¥ Zall Capital °

MR2016F4827H KA 7 &
LR ARI UK EER
HRREEMR ZEW- B
EEPOLRBEARBEBE
YHEOBBHE 2 BER
A A A # LA IR £30,600,000
7 70 R B8306,000,0000 1 2
ARMD - BERFTAADE
TRABEZE1% kL&
LA 3R 429,400,000 T R B
294,000,0008% 7 A @1 fx 15 - 46
ERMAREBITRABRE
49% ° F A B Z B BERE BT
RAB BB AR B AR E - R
2016F6H238 T AR Z KL
ERRERERIAE BB E
HEfE -

B2016F6 158 A AR Z &
BEWB AR EBRERTAER
ANAIE—BEZHEVEE W
# » AKX {868,800,000/% 7T Y B
i EL
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T AR 55

OPERATING RESULTS

e e
RERE

For the Year Ended 31 March

HESRMALEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BB BETT BETT ERETT
Revenue LN 360,414 235,114 253,171 214,959 227,460
Gross Profit EH 101,469 98,410 142,341 122,663 138,369
Profit for the year FREF 22,067 15,383 49,704 11,051 21,215
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BERER
For the Year Ended 31 March
HESRMALEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETTL BETT EBETT
Non-current assets FRBDEE 19,396 23,990 42,600 48,610 83,003
Current assets MBEE 117,645 179,336 115,684 313,504 290,942
Total assets HEHRE 137,041 203,326 158,284 362,114 374,035
Current liabilities g 1h=K-} 54,629 101,294 63,989 27,432 27,537
Net current assets mEBEERE 63,016 78,042 51,695 286,072 263,405
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTDAR 82,412 102,032 94,295 334,682 346,498
Non-current liabilities FRBRE 2,186 6,280 - - -
Net assets BERE 80,226 95,752 94,295 334,682 346,498
Capital and reserves BEREMH
Share capital A 30,000 30,000 30,000 80,000 80,047
Reserves FEE 50,226 65,752 64,295 254,682 263,250
Equity attrbutable to owners of the company AR A AJEIGE S 80,226 95,752 94,295 334,682 343,297
Non-controlling interests FEMRER - - - - 3,201
Total equity BEREE 80,226 95,752 94,295 334,682 346,498
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